
 
 

1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057 
972.221.4600 │ RideDCTA.net 

 
 Board of Directors Regular Meeting  

July 26, 2018 │ 3:00 p.m.* 
*or immediately following Board Work Session 

scheduled at 1:30 p.m. on July 26, 2018 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS 
 
INVOCATION 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS 
 
AGENCY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors on 
any agenda items or other matters relating to the DCTA. Anyone wishing to address the 
Board of Directors should complete a Citizen Comment Registration Card and submit it to 
the DCTA Administration prior to the start of the Board of Director meeting. There is a 
three (3) minute time limit for each citizen. Anyone wishing to speak shall be courteous 
and cordial. The Board of Directors is not permitted to take action on any subject raised 
by a speaker during Citizen Comments. However, the Board of Directors may have the 
item placed on a future agenda for action; refer the item to the DCTA Administration for 
further study or action; briefly state existing DCTA policy; or provide a brief statement of 
factual information in response to the inquiry. 
  

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Approval of Minutes for the Board Work Session and Regular Meeting on June 

28, 2018.  
b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Statements – June 2018 
c. Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report – Q3 FY2018 
d. Approval to award and authorize the President to execute a contract with 

DataMax for the lease and maintenance of copiers 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
a. Discussion and Approval of the Bus Service Changes for August 2018 
b. Discussion and Approval of the Regional Fare Changes effective August 2018 
c. Discussion and Approval of the DBE goal for FY19, 20 and 21 and approval of 

resolution 18-05 
 

 

106



4. Convene Executive Session. The Board may convene the Regular Board Meeting into 
Closed Executive Session for the following: 

a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the 
Regular Board Meeting may be Convened into Closed Executive Session for the 
Purpose of Seeking Confidential Legal Advice from the General Counsel on any 
Agenda Item Listed Herein. 

b. As Authorized by Texas Government Code Section 551.072 Deliberation 
regarding Real Property:  Discuss acquisition, sale or lease of real property 
related to long-range service plan within the cities of Denton, Lewisville, Highland 
Village, or the A-train corridor. 

c. As Authorized by Texas Government Code Section 551.074 Deliberation of 
Personnel Matters, Specifically Discussion regarding the President’s Annual 
Performance Review. 

 
5. Reconvene Open Session 

a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during Executive 
Session. 

b. Discuss and consider authorizing the Board Chairman to negotiate and execute a 
professional services agreement with Strategic Government Resources relating 
to facilitation of the President’s annual performance. 

 
6. CHAIR REPORT 

a. Committee Assignments 
b. Discussion of Regional Transportation Issues  
c. Discussion Legislative Issues 

i. Regional 
ii. State 
iii. Federal 

 
7. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

a. Budget Transfers 
b. Regional Transportation Issues 

 
8. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors may 
report on following items: (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, or 
condolences; (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition of 
individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City events; (5) 
information about community events; and (6) announcements involving imminent 
threat to public health and safety. 

 
9. ADJOURN 

 
Chair – Charles Emery 

Vice Chair – Richard Huckaby 
Secretary – Dianne Costa 
Treasurer – Dave Kovatch

Members – Skip Kalb, Tom Winterburn, Don Hartman,  
George A. Campbell, Allen Harris, Carter Wilson, Connie White, Mark Miller, Ron Trees 

President – James Cline 
 

The Denton County Transportation Authority meeting rooms are wheelchair accessible. Access to the building and special parking are 
available at the main entrance. Requests for sign interpreters or special services must be received forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting time by emailing bpedron@dcta.net or calling Brandy Pedron at 972-221-4600. 
 
This notice was posted on 7/20/2018 at 1:00 PM. 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Assistant | Public Information Coordinator | Records Manager
 

107



 
 

Board of Directors  
 

Work Session Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the 
work session of the Board of Directors with Charles Emery, Chairman presiding at  
on June 28, 2018 at 1955 Lakeway Drive, Suite 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057.  
 

Attendance 
 

Small Cities 
Connie White 
 
Large Cities 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village 
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary 
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
Carter Wilson, Frisco 
Ron Trees, Little Elm 
Joe Perez, 1st Alternate, The Colony 
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
Donna Bloom, 1st Alternate, Denton 
 
Denton County Unincorporated 
Don Hartman 
George Campbell 
Dave Kovatch, Denton County At Large, 

Treasurer  
 
Board Members Absent 
Skip Kalb, Small Cities 
Allen Harris, The Colony 
 
Legal Counsel 
Pete Smith 

 
 
DCTA Staff  
Jim Cline, President 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer, VP 

of Finance 
Raymond Suarez, Chief Operating 

Officer  
Nicole Recker, VP Marketing & 

Communications 
Kristina Holcomb, VP Planning & 

Development 
 
Other Attendees 
Athena Forrester, Assistant VP 

Procurement 
Chrissy Nguyen, Senior Accountant 
Lindsay Baker, Director of Strategic 

Partnerships 
Janelle Tepera, Procurement Specialist 
Drew Campbell, Capitol-Insights 
Byron Campbell, Capitol-Insights 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Assistant 
 
 
 

 
Chairman, Charles Emery, called the meeting to order and announced the presence of 
a quorum at 1:30 p.m.  

 
 

108



1. Routine Briefing Items 
a. Staff Briefing on Monthly Financial Reports – Marisa Perry, Chief Financial 

Officer, VP of Finance, reported on the following: 
i. Monthly Financial Statements for May 2018  
ii. Capital Projects Budget Report for May 2018  
iii. Monthly Sales Tax Receipts 
iv. Current Procurement Activities 

 
b. Marketing and Communications – Nicole Recker, VP Marketing and 

Communications, reported on the following: 
i. New Handouts 
ii. May 2018 Citizen’s Advisory Team Meeting Recap Report 
iii. New Website Launch Campaign Update 
iv. Draft Stakeholder Outreach Matrix 
v. Monthly Media Report (May 2018) 

 
c. Strategic Planning and Development – Kristina Holcomb, VP Planning and 

Development, reported on the following: 
i. Regional Planning Initiatives Update 
ii. Local Planning Update 
iii. Business Development and Partnerships Update 
iv. Funding Opportunities Update  
v. Land Use Planning & Development 

 
d. Capital Projects – Raymond Suarez, Chief Operating Officer, reported on the 

following projects 
i. Positive Train Control  
ii. Hike and Bike Trail 
iii. Lewisville Bus Fueling Facility 

 
e. Transit Operations Reports – Raymond Suarez, Chief Operating Officer, 

reported on the following and gave an update on ridership: 
i. Bus and Rail Operations 

 
2. Items for Discussion – Charles Emery, Chairman, requested Program Services to 

generate answers for Ridership Issues to present and or discuss at the July 17, 
2018 Program Services meeting. George Campbell requested over/under ridership 
numbers presented at the Program Services meeting as well.  

a. Discussion of Public Outreach and Messaging – Jim Cline, President, 
presented the Board with the updated Investor Report Presentation. The 
Board discussed changes and requests to make on the presentation.  

b. Discussion of 85th Legislative Session Agenda – Guest Speakers, Drew 
Campbell and Byron Campbell with Capitol-Insights gave a brief update on 
the happenings of the 85th Legislative Session. Charles Emery, Chairman, 
suggested to the Board that DCTA Board members form a Legislative 
Committee soon to discuss the possible Bills.   

109



c. Mobility 2045 Update and Associated Transportation Conformity Analysis – 
Charles Emery, Chairman, and Kristina Holcomb, VP Planning and 
Development, briefly reported on the North Texas Council of Governments 
Mobility 2045 Update PowerPoint Presentation. 

 
3. Discussion of Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items (June 28, 2018) – There was 

no discussion at this time  
 

4. Convene Executive Session – The board did not meet in Executive Session 
 

5. Discussion of Future Agenda Items  
a. Board Member Requests – Charles Emery, Chairman, requested at the next 

Program Services Meeting that Kristina Holcomb, VP Planning and 
Development, invite the Representative from Stateside and Kevin Laughlin, 
Legal Counsel, to join the meeting and hold an Executive Session regarding 
Real Property under Texas Government Code Section 551.072.  

 
6. ADJOURN at 3:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The minutes of the June 28, 2018 Work Session meeting of the Board of Directors were 
passed and approved by a vote on this 26th day of July 2018. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 
 

ATTEST 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dianne Costa, Secretary 

110



 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors with Charles Emery, Chairman presiding at  
on June 28, 2018 at 1955 Lakeway Drive, Suite 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057.  
 
 

Attendance 
 

Small Cities 
Connie White 
 
Large Cities 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village 
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary 
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
Carter Wilson, Frisco 
Ron Trees, Little Elm 
Joe Perez, 1st Alternate, The Colony 
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
 
Denton County Unincorporated 
Don Hartman 
George Campbell 
Dave Kovatch, Denton County At Large, 

Treasurer  
 
Board Members Absent 
Skip Kalb, Small Cities 
Allen Harris, The Colony 

 
 
Legal Counsel 
Pete Smith 
 
DCTA Staff  
Jim Cline, President 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer, VP 

of Finance 
Raymond Suarez, Chief Operating 

Officer  
Nicole Recker, VP Marketing & 

Communications 
Kristina Holcomb, VP Planning & 

Development 
 
Other Attendees 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Assistant 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Chairman, Charles Emery, called the meeting to order and announced 
the presence of a quorum at 3:24 p.m. 
 
 

111



PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS – led by Carter Wilson 
 
INVOCATION – led by Dianne Costa, Secretary 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS – Charles Emery, Chairman, welcomed and 
introduced The Colony 1st Alternate, Joe Perez  
 
AGENCY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS – None at this time 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT – No public comment at this time 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors 
on any agenda items or other matters relating to the DCTA. Anyone wishing to address 
the Board of Directors should complete a Citizen Comment Registration Card and 
submit it to the DCTA Administration prior to the start of the Board of Director meeting. 
There is a three (3) minute time limit for each citizen. Anyone wishing to speak shall be 
courteous and cordial. The Board of Directors is not permitted to take action on any 
subject raised by a speaker during Citizen Comments. However, the Board of Directors 
may have the item placed on a future agenda for action; refer the item to the DCTA 
Administration for further study or action; briefly state existing DCTA policy; or provide 
a brief statement of factual information in response to the inquiry.  

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Minutes for the Board Work Session and Regular Meeting on May 
24, 2018 

b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Statements for May 2018 
- A Motion to approve the Consent Agenda items a - b was made by Dave 

Kovatch, Treasurer. The motion was seconded by Dianne Costa, 
Secretary. Motion passed unanimously by the Board.   

 
3. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION – convened at 3:28 p.m. 

a. As Authorized by Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code regarding Real 
Property, the Regular Board Meeting convened into Closed Executive Session 
for the Purpose of Discussion of Acquisitions, Sale or Lease of real property 
related to long range service plan within the cities of Denton, Lewisville, Highland 
Village, or the A-train corridor.  
 

4. RECONVENE OPEN SESSION – reconvened at 3:57 p.m. 
a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during Executive 

Session 
- No action was taken 

 
5. CHAIR REPORT  

a. Discussion of Regional Transportation Issues – Charles Emery, Chairman briefly 
discussed updates regarding RTC Seat voting.   

 
6. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

a. Budget Transfers – Jim Cline, President reported on the Budget Transfer for 
funds from capital program to operating expenses to fix the crossing.  

112



b. Regional Transportation Issues – Jim Cline, President, informed the Board that 
he would be a speaker at the Denton Mobility Committee on July 18th. The 
President also informed the Board that the autonomous vehicle soft launch for 
Frisco will happen on the 23rd of July and the Hard Launch is to take place on the 
30th.   
 

7. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST – there was none at this time 
a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors may 

report on following items: (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, or 
condolences; (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition of 
individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City events; (5) 
information about community events; and (6) announcements involving imminent 
threat to public health and safety. 
 

8. ADJOURN – Adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The minutes of the June 28, 2018 regular meeting of the Board of Directors were passed, 
and approved by a vote on this 26th day of July 2018. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dianne Costa, Secretary 

113



114



 
 
Board of Directors Memo                           July 26, 2018 
Subject:  RM 3a Discussion and Approval of the Bus Service Changes for August 
2018 
 
 
Background 
 
DCTA monitors and reviews the performance of its services system-wide on a regular and ongoing basis.  
Based on these reviews, staff develops recommendations for service modifications to improve service 
efficiency and effectiveness.  Service modifications are generally implemented two times a year, in 
January and August.     
 
The recommended service changes proposed for implementation on August 27, 2018 were developed in 
consultation with customers, frontline operations staff, DCTA staff, the Board, and the community at-large.  
The recommendations were initially presented to the Board at their March 22 meeting, followed by 
presentations to the Program Services Committee in April and May.  A series of public meetings were 
also held in April to solicit stakeholder and public feedback.  A copy of the Public Engagement Wrap Up 
and online presentation summarizing the service changes are attached for reference.  
 
 
Recommended Service Changes  
Denton Connect Bus Service 
Minor schedule modifications to Routes 1, 6, and 7 are recommended to enhance connections and 
transfers between other Denton Connect routes and the A-train. In addition, staff is recommending:   
 Rerouting Denton Connect Route 8 from Oak Street to Eagle Drive.  This modification will allow for 

better connectivity to the A-train; offer more direct service between the Downtown Denton Transit 
Center (DDTC) and the University of North Texas (UNT); serve the south side of the UNT campus; 
serve new housing developments on Eagle Drive; and maintain the current 15 minute headway.   

 Expanding service to serve the Denton Enterprise Airport, as recommended in the Denton 
Comprehensive Analysis.  Service would be expanded to this area through a mobility on-demand pilot 
project that will provide on-demand service within the designated Denton Enterprise Airport Zone, as 
well as trips to/from Fouts Field for connections to Denton Connect and UNT routes.       

 
Highland Village Bus Service 
Service in Highland Village consists of the Highland Village Connect Shuttle, Highland Village Community 
On-Demand, and Lyft Discount Program. Based on ridership, staff is recommending modifying the 
headway on the Highland Village Connect Shuttle from 20 to 30 minutes.  Staff is also recommending 
transitioning the Highland Village Community On-Demand service, which is currently directly provided by 
DCTA, to the Lyft Discount Program, increasing the Lyft discount from $2 to $10, maintaining the existing 
Highland Village Lyft Zone, and expanding the service hours to 9:00 pm  
 
North Texas Xpress  
Proposed changes to the North Texas Xpress (Route 64) include rerouting service from University Drive 
to North Texas Boulevard, allowing access to Fouts Field.  This modification provides a one-seat ride and 
more direct access to Denton Connect and UNT services. 
 
University of North Texas (UNT) 
Recommend modifying the Eagle Point route to provide service to Maple, Kerr, and Honors Hall as 
requested by UNT. The proposed service modification will provide more direct access to campus for 
students living at Victory Hall, a one-seat ride from Victory Hall to the Union, and add capacity to the 
Mean Green campus circulator.  
 115



116



1

2018 April Public Meetings
April 16, 18 & 24, 2018

Engagement Overview

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 2

Engagement Area:
Cities of Lewisville, Denton and Highland Village 

Engagement Timeframe:
April 13 – May 4, 2018

Public Meetings:
A series of open house meetings were held in DCTA’s three 
member cities in April 2018. The meetings were open house 
style to give the attendees flexibility in their time of 
attendance and offered people time to peruse the 
proposals at their own pace. An online presentation and a 
dedicated webpage showcasing the information 
presented at the three meetings was hosted on 
RideDCTA.net with an available comment form.

117



2

Engagement Overview

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 3

Engagement Objective

Solicit public input on the following topics: 

• August 2018 Service Changes

• Upcoming Fare Increases and Changes

• Job Access and Connectivity along 35W and Sam Rayburn

• Corridors Access Policies & Procedures

• Lyft Partnership and Bikeshare Proposal for Southeast Denton

• EPA Brownfields Grant – Subsurface Investigation

• Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail

• Access Policies and Procedures Update

MEETING DETAILS

118



3

Meeting Details

Lewisville Public Meeting

Location: Lewisville City Hall Lobby
In conjunction with the regularly scheduled city 
council meeting.

Date: Monday, April 16, 2018

Time: 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

5 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 5

Meeting Details

Denton Public Meeting

Location: Downtown Denton Transit Center 

Date: Wednesday, April 18, 2018

Time: 3 p.m. – 7 p.m.

36 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 6

119



4

Meeting Details

Highland Village Public Meeting

Location:
Highland Village Municipal Complex Lobby
In conjunction with the regularly scheduled city 
council meeting.

Date: Tuesday, April 24, 2018

Time: 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

15 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 7

SOCIAL MEDIA OUTREACH

120



5

Facebook - Organic

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 9

Post Dates: 
4/13, 4/17, 4/19, 4/26, 4/30

People Reached: 565

Total Engagements: 6

Twitter - Organic

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 10

Post Dates: 
4/17, 4/20, 4/30

People Reached: 1,180

Total Engagements: 12

121



6

Facebook - Paid

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 11

Ad Run Dates:

April 1 – 17, 2018

Facebook - Paid

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 12

Ad Run Dates:

April 17– 25, 2018

122



7

Twitter – Paid V1 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 13

Twitter – Paid V2 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 14

123



8

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

Social Media Comprehensive Results

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 15

• Days Posted – 33

• Total Impressions – 113,335

• Total Engagements – 5,871

DIGITAL MARKETING OUTREACH

124



9

Email Marketing Statistics

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 17

• Email send: April 13, 2018
• Total Sent: 5,701
• Delivered: 5,568
• Opens: 776
• Unique Opens: 97
• Total Clicks: 75

Website Statistics

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 18

125



10

MEDIA RELATIONS

Media Relations

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 20

Publication Mentions
• Denton Record-Chronicle

• Lewisville Texan Journal
• Cross Timbers Gazette

126



11

Traditional Advertising

Traditional Advertising

Newspaper Ad’s

Publication Dates: 
• April 1
• April 2
• April 8
• April 9
• April 15
• April 16
• April 22
• April 23

Placement 
Publications:
• Carrollton Leader
• Coppell Gazette
• Lewisville Leader
• The Colony Courier

Leader
• The Lake Cities Sun
• The Leader

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 22

127



12

OVERALL COMMUNITY OUTREACH STATISTICS

Community Outreach

Events

• Colorpalooza passed out flyers to 150 attendees
• UNT Apartment Fair spoke with 80 attendees
• Highland Village Chamber Luncheon made verbal announcement to 80 attendees

Direct Mail Campaign

• Sent 327 letters to businesses, non-profits and apartments along the proposed service change routes

Phone Calls

• Made 30 phone calls to businesses, non-profits and apartments along the proposed service change
routes

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 24

128



13

Community Outreach - Email
Emails
250 emails sent to contacts who distributed to their 
respective audiences via their databases.

Emailed entities included: 
• City of Denton
• City of Highland Village
• Denton ISD
• Denton CVB
• Lewisville CVB
• Lewisville ISD
• SEDA
• All the offices of Lewisville local elected state

officials(State House, State Senate)
• The Lewisville Texan Journal
• The Lewisville Leader
• Community Impact Newspaper (Lewisville, Flower

Mound, Highland Village)
• Citizen Advisory Team members
• UNT
• TWU
• Denton Black Chamber of Commerce

• Denton Hispanic Chamber of Commerce
• Denton County Friends of the Family
• Salvation Army of Denton County
• North Central Texas College
• The Denton Record Chronicle
• The Dallas Morning News
• The Fort Worth Star-Telegram
• FOX 4 News
• NBC 5 News
• WFAA News 8
• CBS 11 News
• Noticias 23 News
• CW33 News
• Telemundo 39 News
• Suburban Parent
• DFW Child

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 25

Partner Sharing

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 26

Partner Sharing
• 10 partner shares on: 4/9, 4/13 and 4/16
• Total Engagements: 39

129



14

BUDGET

Budget
Budget Breakdown:
• HCK2 1(2.5 Hours) – Resizing & Print Ad Placement: $1,750
• HCK2 (9.5 Hours) – Social media Creative, Posting & Reporting - $1,300
• Print Advertising: $4,049
• Social Media Advertising: $1,524.22
• Display Boards: $315.90
• DDTC Poster: $27.29
• Flyers: $162.86
• Direct Mail Outreach – Envelopes: $222.76 (Remaining envelopes to be used for future outreach.)
• Direct Mail Outreach – Postage: $164
• Event Supplies – Easels: $180.45
• Event Supplies – Snacks, Dot Stickers, Plastic Document Holders, etc: $88.51
• Pull Up Banners: $327.04 (Evergreen creative will be used at future public meetings.)

TOTAL: $10,112.03 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 28

130



15

OVERALL ENGAGEMENT STATISTICS

Overall Engagement Statistics
Total Promotional Timeframe

• April 1 - May 4, 2018

Total Impressions Across All Efforts
• 411,193

Total Engagements Across All Efforts
• 7,210

Total Number of Attendees 
• 63

Total Number of Comments
• 82

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 30

131



16

COMMENTS 

Lewisville Comments
Topic: Lewisville Route 26
New senior living community and apartments. 
Why does Route 26 not serve them?

Topic: Highland Village Shuttle
No stops on Southern portion of shuttle route. 
Potential for stops at McGee or CVS at Garden 
Ridge. Use community on-demand two times a 
week with Regional pass. Not sure changes with 
Lyft will be as convenient.

Topic: A-train Special Event Service
I would really like special event service to and 
from American Airlines Center for Mavs and Stars 
games. Even if it was one train to pick up after 
the event.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 32

132



17

Denton Comments
Topic: Service Hours
Please make the buses run much later on Saturdays. 
6 p.m. is the latest? Monday through Friday til
midnight extend hours of operation for buses in 
Denton.

Need later bus service in Denton. 

Consider Sunday service for my shopping and travel.

Topic: Fare Increase
Concerned about the increase in ticket fee. 
Wouldn’t mind having promo’s though.

Find an alternate way to not increase fare. Buying 
two different tickets is difficult, not convenient.

I am a daily rider. Keep the 10 pack of 
local/regional fare. Work to stop the Regional fare 
increase. Basically, if I had to choose between 
having one Regional day pass for $12 or buying two 
local day passes for $5 each, I’d take the latter.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 33

Denton Comments
Topic: DDTC
Please put a clock in the Denton Downtown Center.

We should have recycling containers inside the DDTC!

They are closing the DDTC at 6:56 p.m. not 7 p.m.

I think the DDTC should be open the same hours that the buses are running.

Topic: Access
Excellent Access bus driver (George, 5 a.m.) Always feel safe!

Thanks for extended access hours.

Topic: Route 4
The 4 is the only way that you can get to University. Pluses – the 7 and 8 so you can go to Presby either way.

#4 = good. Connectors from University to Golden Triangle plus MedPark via Nottingham, Audra, Woodrow. University 
via Carroll, Elm and Locust. Denton Community Health Clinic stop.

Topic: Route 5
Buses are dwelling way too long at DDTC for no reason.

Connect North Lakes Park Route 5. Route 1 connect to Eureka Park (South Lakes).

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 34

133



18

Denton Comments
Topic: Route 6
Route 6 try a Saturday bus.

I have submitted several requests (orally) for a stop on Route 6 by the North Branch Library (inbound). I have not 
received any replies to my request. Each person at the city makes the final decisions. If they reject this request I’d 
like to know the reason. There is a bike path on Windsor where the stop would be, but there are no “No Parking” 
signs, so cars are parked there during school hours and school days.

I can’t take Route 6 anymore. It’s hard for me to take Route 6 or 7. Because I can’t walk a long way anymore. So I 
would like for you to have a Route 6 go back like it was before. Thank you.
Kroger and Walmart long connection to Route 4.

Topic: Route 7/Route 8 Change
Consider a smaller bus for one of the two buses during peak times. When one bus gets behind often, send a small 
added bus. East bound takes too long to get home.

Topic: DCTA
Excellent staff. 

Thanks for listening!

Overall DCTA is great!

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 35

Denton Comments
Topic: Denton Airport Zone
Good idea! Please make it happen.

Topic: A-train
I take A-train back and forth to Trinity Mills. Excellent!

Topic: Service
More Service to parks in Denton

Service to Frisco and Collin County.

Service to Flower Mound.

Please make the buses run much later on Saturdays. 6 p.m. is the latest? Monday through Friday til midnight extend 
hours of operation for buses in Denton.

Need later bus service in Denton. 

Consider Sunday service for my shopping and travel.

The bus schedule should be extended until 9 p.m. 6 days a week.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 36

134



19

Denton Comments
Topic: Lakeview Zone
Would it be worth holding an additional public meeting specifically for corporate park?

I am an annual pass holder and ride Route 21 in Lewisville approximately 4 times a week. I do not want an 
additional cost for an on-demand type system. I currently have about a ½ mile walk from bus stop 770465 to 
my office. If the stop cold be moved that would be appreciated. If Route 21 needs to change to save costs, 
what about doing away with the non-business rider times 9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.? What you are currently doing 
works 90% of the time (except for my walk, which probably good for me). On-demand would be acceptable 
if there would be no additional charge.

Comment from 2 regular riders. Route 21 in Lakeview area – drivers are always early or late and will totally pass 
by people waiting at a stop or walking to a stop. We have to break the new drivers in! Love Steve on Route 21! 
And Adele. One of the 2 regular riders said she is holding off on renewing her annual pass until DCTA makes a 
decision on the Lakeview zone. She wants a fixed route.

Topic: Opportunities to Volunteer
I am so excited about this. Due to a vision problem I have needs for this type of service. I have waited and 
wanted this for a long time. I would like to volunteer.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 37

Denton Comments
Topic: Transit Transfers System
Transfers should be used. I transfer for all buses. The meaning is to go by the amount of hours that remain on 
the transfer. In most typical situations it should give the rider a 3 hour transfer ticket time that works for all buses 
(including return trip).

Topic: Route 65
Like the Route 65 proposal.

Topic: Stop and Shelter Requests
More sheds near connector route exchange points. Access to airport area also.

Restroom at Trinity Mills – door operated by ticket (valid ticket).

Please put emergency phones at the train stops. 

Topic: Fares
Concerned about the increase in ticket fee. Wouldn’t mind having promos though.

Find an alternate way to not increase fare. Buying two different tickets is difficult, not convenient.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 38

135



20

Highland Village Comments
Topic: General
Would love to see more mass transit!

Topic: Highland Village Lyft Service
I currently ride Community On-Demand using a 
Regional reduced pass. Willing to try Lyft if it was more 
affordable. 

Topic: Not Enough Time to Purchase Ticket On Platform
Concerned about time to buy a ticket at Trinity Mills. 

Topic: Fare Changes
I am with Southwest Airlines. I represent a group of 
SWA employees who purchase Regional passes from 
DCTA. We would like for you to keep the fares low to 
keep encouraging people to ride.

Not in favor of fare increase for Regional pass. 

Please make fares comparable to current levels –
particularly with reduced fares.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 39

Highland Village Comments
Topic: Route Service
Route 4 delays are an issue.

Route 2 from Walmart to Route 6 transfer time is a concern.

I wish that DCTA would provide buses and train services on Sunday. I truly enjoy the services Mon-Fri and would love to 
see buses and trains extend more late arrivals and more services on Sunday.

Interested in providing service to the CACDC.

Requesting service at CAC.

Shorter routes make travel from my home to 121 bus at Bellaire much less convenient. This location is a community 
center “Next Steps Center”. It is an important destination.

Saturday service needs more frequency.

Topic: Highland Village Station
Shade from cover is wrong direction. Needs to be wider. As it is now the shade is over in the parking lot.

Topic: Service Hours
I drive to Carrollton to pick up DART because hours aren’t late enough.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 40

136



21

Online Comments
Topic: Route and Schedule Information
Yesterday (Apr. 18) I was at the downtown Denton DCTA 
building. I was given a packet of changes that would be 
happening at DCTA. One of these was labeled as 
Proposed Commuter Bus Service Serving Hebron, 
Southwest Medical District, and West End. There was no 
info included in the handout. If DCTA is planning such 
where would the bus stops be? I ask because I take DCTA 
trains to/from Trinity Mills then switch to DART trains and go 
to West End Area. DCTA used to have a bus that I took to 
the West End Area years ago before the A train.

Topic: Route 21
When I moved to Lewisville I chose Stone Creek because 
it has bust shelters/stops for both inbound and outbound, 
right at my door. I use this service every day. If it changes I 
may not cope with additional walking. I may purchase 
another car. Please don’t change 21 on E. Southwest 
Pkwy.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 41

Online Comments
Topic: Drivers
The drivers of Routes 5&6 need to learn to make up the time that they are early along University and not Bell. I work at 
TWU and when the bus arrives at the stop on Administration, they cannot stop on Bell because they get a long line of 
cars waiting behind them. I have missed the bus a number of times because they are running early. 

I must say that probably 95% of the drivers are great. 

Topic: Service Hours
I would really like to see Sunday service.

I think the DDTC should be open the same hours that the buses are running.

Topic: Mechanical Issues
The mechanical issues and breakdowns are horrible! They need to stop. DCTA needs to get on the repairs of the 
vehicles so the number of issues goes down. 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 42

137



22

Display Board Comments

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 43

Corridors of Interest for Job Access & 
Connectivity

ORIGIN DESTINATION OF INTEREST

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport)

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport)

A (Downtown Denton) N (Downtown Fort Worth)

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport) 
O (Downtown Dallas) 
F (The Colony)
K (114 Corridor)

The map below was shared at the public meetings. Attendees were asked to identify their individual 
origin and destinations for job access and connectivity that they would be interested in. Those results 
are below.

Display Board Comments

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 44

3 votes Maintaining the current cost of fare.
(Regional & Local)

1 vote Convenience of purchasing one 
regional fare vs. two local fares.

1 vote Improved bus frequency.
1 vote Additional mid-day A-train service.
4 votes Sunday bus service.
1 vote Southbound shuttle service stops in 

Highland Village.
0 votes Last/first mile connection.
0 votes Improved A-train frequency. 
0 votes Late-night A-train service.

WHICH IS MOST IMPORTANT TO YOU?
Public meeting attendees were asked to place a sticker next to the item that was most important to them. 

Blank spaces were also provided if there was something of importance not listed.

138



23

Comment Takeaways
• Interest in:

• Service between the DDTC and DFW Airport
• Later bus service
• Bus service on Sundays

• Concerns about:
• Increase in regional fare
• Lack of fixed-route service in the Lewisville Lakeview Zone

• Would like DCTA to consider:
• Matching DDTC hours to service hours
• Better transfer times when making service changes

• Kudos:
• DCTA staff is excellent

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 45

139



1

April 2018 Open House Meeting Topics
Presentation Live: 4/13 – 5/4

Access Policies and Procedures Update

140



2

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

Access Policies and Procedures Update

DCTA • Presentation Title • September 28, 2017 3

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

Access Policies and Procedures Update

DCTA • Presentation Title • September 28, 2017 4

Complete Outline of Existing Policies and Procedures

141



3

Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail

Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail

Update on Construction:
• Construction of the final section of the Eagle

Point section of the Hike and Bike Trail will
begin Summer 2018.

• The last quarter mile of the North end of the
trail will meander through park property
controlled by the Corps of Engineers.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 6

142



4

EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant

EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant

Grant Update:
• DCTA was awarded $178,200 as one of

two recipients in Texas, to conduct an
Environmental Site Assessment on DCTA
property located at the Rail Operations and
Maintenance Facility in Lewisville.

• The funds will be used to conduct a Phase
II Environmental Site Assessment, which
includes testing for petroleum and
hazardous materials.

• The targeted area is a total of 77.5 acres.
• DCTA is currently evaluating proposals for

subsurface investigation.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 8

The DCTA Rail Operations and Maintenance facility is 
located at 640 Texas 121 Business, Lewisville, Texas 75057

143



5

Job Access & Connectivity

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

Corridors of Interest for Job Access and Connectivity

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 10

Based on the map below, which origin and destination(s) you would be interested in?
If your area of interest isn’t on the map, please let us know!

144



6

Proposed Highland Village Service Changes

HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Connect Shuttle
Proposed
• 30 minute frequency
• 4:50 a.m. – 10:37 a.m. and

3:08 p.m. – 9:24 p.m.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 12

Current
• 20 minute frequency
• 5 a.m. – 10 a.m. and

3 p.m. – 9 p.m.

Service Change Overview:

• DCTA is proposing to reduce the shuttle frequency from 20
minutes to 30 minutes to meet system-wide service standards.

• DCTA is proposing to increase the hours of operation to better
meet customer demand and connection to the A-train.

• The shuttle route, flag stops, and park and ride locations will
remain the same.

145



7

HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Community On-Demand
Proposed
• Maintain Existing Zone
• Provided by Lyft
• On-demand
• Monday – Friday
• 5 am – 9 pm

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 13

Current
• Highland Village Zone
• Provided by DCTA
• 2 Hour Notice
• Monday - Friday
• 5 am – 7 pm

Service Change Overview:

• Providing on-demand service within the Highland Village Zone
through DCTA’s partnership with Lyft.

• DCTA would provide a subsidy for all trips taken with Lyft (within
the zone).

• On-demand service is offered in real time via the Lyft mobile app
(subscription service still available).

• Extend hours of operation until 9 p.m.

Proposed Lewisville Service Changes

146



8

LEWISVILLE CONNECT

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 15

Current Lewisville System

21

22

22

21

LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 25
30 Minute Frequency

Connections
• Connects with Route 26 at Old Town Station, Church Street, 

Main Street and Summit Avenue
• Connects with Route 28 at the Old Town Station
• Connects with HVCS at FM 407 and Summit Avenue

Serves:
• Old Town Station
• Lewisville City Hall
• Main Street Wal-Mart
• Department of Public Safety
• Department Family & Protective Services
• Post Office
• Lewisville Public Library
• Lewisville Municipal Annex
• Residential and Light Industrial on Mill north of Main Street

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 16

147



9

LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 26

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 17

30 Minute Frequency

Connections:
• Connects with Route 25 at the Old Town Station, along 

Church Street, Main Street and Summit Avenue
• Connects with Route 28 at the Old Town Station

Serves:
• Old Town Station
• Lewisville City Hall
• Main Street Wal-Mart
• Lewisville Public Library
• Senior Center
• Memorial Park Recreation Center
• Educational Facilities
• Residential Area Along Fox Avenue 
• Improved access for CCA and Salvation Army

LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 27

30 Minute Frequency

Connections:
• Connects with Route 28 along Oak Bend Drive, Vista 

Ridge Mall Drive and portions of Round Grove Road
• Connects with the Lakeway Zone at the Hebron Station

Serves:
• Hebron Station
• Round Grove Road Retail
• Large areas of Multi-Family Housing
• Serves Mary Kay from the front of the building (outbound) 

and the side (inbound)
• Office Park off Edmonds at 121
• Convergence Office Park
• Round Grove Wal-Mart

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 18

148



10

LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 28

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 19

30 Minute Frequency

Connections:
• Provides a North-South Connection
• Connects with Route 25 and Route 26 at the Old Town 

Station
• Connects with Route 27 along Oak Bend Drive, Vista 

Ridge Mall Drive and portions of Round Grove Road

Serves:
• Old Town Station
• CCA (Both Mill Street and 121 locations)
• Budget Suites
• Apartments along Southwest Parkway
• Round Grove Wal-Mart
• Mary Kay on the side of the building

LEWISVILLE: Lakeview Zone

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 20

Possible Lyft Zone

Potential Hub System or Curb-to-Curb:
• Hub out of Hebron Station
• With possible hub or curb-to-curb inside the zone at:

1. Xerox
2. Lakeway @ Bennett
3. Fed Ex / Charter School
4. Anixter, Inc. / TIGI Linea Corp.
5. RR Donnelley
6. DCTA Admin Office
7. Target
8. Other Potential Locations as Identified

149



11

Proposed Denton Service Changes

DENTON CONNECT: Route 8

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 22

Service Overview:
• Allows for better connectivity with the A-train.
• Offers more direct service between DDTC and UNT.
• Serves the South end of campus.
• Serves areas of Eagle Drive currently not served.
• Continues to have 15 minute frequency on portions of Oak Street serving campus.

Proposed Route 
8

Current Route 
8

Current
• 30/60 minute frequency

Proposed
• 30 minute frequency

150



12

DENTON: Enterprise Airport Zone

Potential Hub System:

Hub out of Fouts Field
• Connects with Route 7, Route 8, North

Texan, Eagle Point, and Mean Green.

With possible hubs inside the zone at:
1. UNT Surplus Warehouse
2. Tetra Pak / Fastenal / Target /

Peterbilt
3. WinCo Foods Distribution
4. Ben E. Keith Beverages
5. ALDI Distribution Center
6. Denton Enterprise Airport and US

Aviation Academy

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 23

Proposed UNT Service Changes

151



13

Eagle Point (UNT Route)
Current Route:

• 7-Minute Frequency.

• Only daytime route that serves 
Victory Hall.

• Forced transfer for those going on 
campus.

Proposed Route:
• 20-Minute Frequency.

• Serves Maple, Kerr, Honors, and 
Victory Halls as requested by 
UNT.

• Provides another campus 
circulator. 

• Helps address overcrowding on 
the Mean Green.

• Provides a one-seat ride from 
Victory Hall to the GAB and the 
Union.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 25

Current Route

Proposed North Texas Xpress / Alliance Service Changes

152



14

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

NORTH TEXAS XPRESS/ALLIANCE

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 27

Proposed Changes:

NEW Route 65 Overview

• Providing service between Alliance, UNT and the park and 
ride located at Texas Health Presbyterian Hospital Denton.

North Texas Xpress Service Overview

• Bring the North Texas Xpress in to Fouts Field.
• Improve access to UNT.
• Provide for one seat ride to campus.
• Add early morning/late night service to accommodate.
• Alliance work schedules.

Create Zones of Alternative Service

• UNT and TWU.
• Economic Opportunity Zone.
• Provide alternative mobility options within the zones 

outside of DCTA’s operating hours (Lyft).
• eBike as a future phase.

Alliance Link Shuttle

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 28

Service Overview

Goal:

Improve access to jobs, by providing enhanced connectivity 
between Alliance and potential employee pools in Denton. 

• DCTA has partnered with public and private stakeholders to 
provide on-demand, first/last mile shuttle service in Alliance, 
Texas, providing seamless access to major employers. 

Phase 1 launched April 9
• Service hours Monday – Friday 
• 5:30-8:30 a.m.
• 4:30-7:30 p.m.

Phase 2 launches May 7
• Service hours Monday – Sunday 
• 5:30-8:30 a.m.
• 4:30-7:30 p.m.

• Alliance Link shuttle connects to the North Texas Xpress 
service at the Heritage and Horizon stop

• Alliance Link Shuttle will have 7 stops at major employers 
www.RideAllianceLink.com

153



15

2018 Fare Changes

Proposed Regional Fare Increase

Why is DCTA considering raising regional fares in August 
2018?
• DART and Trinity Metro (formerly the Fort Worth

Transportation Authority) are raising their regional fares by 
20%.

• DCTA currently participates in a regional fare program to
simplify transfers between systems.

• DCTA wants to remain a part of the regional fare system –
therefore providing customers with access to the entire
transit system in the Metroplex with one pass.

• DCTA is concerned that this fare increase will negatively
impact ridership.

• DCTA is considering alternatives to mitigate this potential
impact.

• DCTA is not proposing any increase to local fares.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 30

REGIONAL 
FARE = 

20%
Current Regional Day Pass = $10

August 2018 Regional Day Pass = $12
(this is a singular regional fare example)

154



16

Which is Most Important to You?

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • April 2018 31

WHICH IS MOST IMPORTANT TO YOU?

Maintaining the Current Cost of Fare (Regional + Local)

Convenience of Purchasing One Regional Fare vs Two Local Fares

First/Last Mile Connection

Improved Bus Frequency

Improved A‐train Frequency

Additional Mid‐Day A‐train Service

Late‐Night A‐train Service

Sunday Bus Service

Which of the following is most important to you? 
If there’s something else you would like to include, let us know!

Proposed Commuter Bus Service Serving 
DCTA’s Hebron Station, Southwestern 
Medical District and West End

155



1 

 

 

 
Technical Memorandum – Equity Analysis: August 2018 Service 
Changes 

TO:  Michelle Bloomer, Denton County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM: Zachary Elgart, Texas A&M Transportation Institute 

 
DATE: July 25, 2018 

SUBJECT: Title VI Analysis – August 2018 Service Changes 

Background	and	Purpose	

DCTA will propose a series of service changes in August 2018. According to FTA Circular 
4702.1B, a Title VI equity analysis is required for service changes that meet a transit agency’s 
definition of a major service change. This section briefly describes each of DCTA’s proposed 
August 2018 changes and documents whether the change qualifies as a major service change 
according to DCTA’s policy. The following sections present the Title VI analyses for those 
changes identified as major changes and compare the changes with DCTA’s service performance 
and design standards.  

According to DCTA’s policy, a major service change is as follows: 

1. Route Level Service Reduction or Elimination 
a. Reducing an existing route by more than 25% of weekday route revenue 

miles, or 
b. Reducing an existing route by more than 25% of Saturday route miles, or 
c. Reducing the number of directional route miles more than 25%, or 
d. A change in route alignment resulting in 25% or greater variance from the 

existing route alignment, or 
e. In situations where service would be reduced or eliminated in jurisdictions 

where minority and/or low-income populations exceed the transit system 
service area. 

2. Route Level Expansion or Addition of a New Route 
a. Adding a new route, or 
b. Expansion of an existing route that increases weekday route revenue miles by 

more than 25%, or 
c. Expansion of an existing route that increases Saturday route revenue miles 

by more than 25%, or 
d. Expanding the number of route directional miles more than 25%, or 
e. A change in a route alignment resulting in a 25% or greater variance from 

the existing route alignment. 

Transit Mobility Program 
Texas A&M Transportation Institute 
701 N. Post Oak Rd 
Houston, TX 77024 
713-613-9241 
tti.tamu.edu/group/transit-mobility 

UPDATED

156



2 

 

August	2018	Proposed	Service	Changes	

The following sections describe each of DCTA’s August 2018 proposed service changes and 
identify whether the change constitutes a major change according to DCTA’s major service 
change policy. 

Summary	of	August	2018	Proposed	Service	Changes	

DCTA proposes to change eight routes in August 2018. Table 1 presents a brief description of 
each proposed service change and documents whether the change is a major change according to 
DCTA’s major service change policy. Complementary sections describe each change in detail. 
See the Title VI Analysis section for analysis of the major service changes identified in Table 1. 

Table 1. Summary of DCTA’s August 2018 Proposed Service Changes 

Service to be 
Changed 

Schedule 
Change? 

Route 
Change?

Description of Change(s) Major 
Change?

Route 1 Yes No Schedule modification No 

Route 6 Yes No Schedule modification No 

Route 7 Yes No Schedule modification No 

Route 8 Yes Yes Schedule and route change Yes 

Route 22 No Yes Stops moved No 

HVCSA Yes No 
Schedule modification | Reduce from 3 
to 2 vehicles 

No 

NTXB Yes Yes Schedule and route change No 

Eagle Point No Yes Route change Yes 

Mean Green 
Night Rider 

Yes Yes New service Yes 

North Texan Yes Yes Schedule and route change No 
A Highland Village Connect Shuttle 
B North Texas Xpress 

Routes	1	and	7	

DCTA proposes to adjust the service schedule on Routes 1 and 7 to improve service efficiency 
and effectiveness in August 2018. The total schedule change is less than five minutes different 
than the current service schedule, the changes do not affect stop locations or service corridors, 
and service will not be reduced or expanded. According to DCTA’s major service change policy, 
the modifications to Routes 1 and 7 proposed for August 2018 do not constitute a major service 
change and, therefore, do not require a Title VI equity analysis. 

UPDATED

157



3 

 

Route	6	

DCTA proposes to adjust the service schedule on Route 6 in August 2018 so that the service 
headways decrease from 30 minutes to 22 minutes—a difference of eight minutes. The change 
will not affect stop locations or service corridors. According to DCTA’s major service change 
policy, the modifications to Route 6 service proposed for August 2018 do not constitute a major 
service change and, therefore, do not require a Title VI equity analysis. 

Route	8	

DCTA proposes to re-align Route 8 to improve service efficiency and effectiveness in August 
2018. The Route 8 realignment will relocate stops and reduce route miles by approximately six 
percent (0.23 miles) on the segment inbound to the Downtown Denton Transit Center. According 
to DCTA’s major service change policy, the modifications to Route 8 proposed for August 2018 
are not substantial enough to constitute a major service change, however service will be reduced 
(due to reduced route miles) in areas with higher than county average low-income, minority, and 
LEP populations. Therefore, due to impacts on Title VI protected populations, the Route 8 
service change requires a Title VI equity analysis—documented in the Title VI analysis section, 
below. 

Route	22	

DCTA proposes to add two stops in existing service corridors on Route 22 to improve service 
efficiency and effectiveness in August 2018. Service on Route 22 will not be reduced or 
expanded. According to DCTA’s major service change policy, the modifications to Route 22 
proposed for August 2018 do not constitute a major service change and, therefore, the Route 22 
service changes do not require a Title VI equity analysis. 

Highland	Village	Connect	Shuttle	

DCTA proposes to reduce the Highland Village Connect Shuttle (HVCS) service from three 
vehicles to two and increase the service headways from 20 to 30 minutes—a difference of 10 
minutes. The change will not affect stop locations or service corridors. Additionally, the service 
reduction occurs in areas with lower than county average low-income, minority, and LEP 
populations, as shown in Table 2. 

Table 2. Low-Income, Minority, and LEP Population Affected by HVCS Service Change 

 Low-Income Minority LEP 
½ Mile Catchment Area Population 5.8% 12.3% 17.6% 

Service Area Average 8.9% 20.5% 24.4% 
Difference -3.1% -8.2% -6.8% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates 

According to DCTA’s major service change policy, the modifications to HVCS proposed for 
August 2018 do not constitute a major service change, therefore the HVCS changes do not 
require a Title VI equity analysis. 

UPDATED

158



4 

 

North	Texas	Xpress	

The current North Texas Xpress (NTX) commuter service route includes 25 total stops and 
travels approximately 35 miles each way, providing service between Denton and Fort Worth. In 
August 2018, DCTA proposes to adjust the service in the Denton area so that a portion of the 
route from Presbyterian Hospital north to University Drive and then down Bonnie Brae will be 
removed. Instead, the vehicle will travel north on the IH35 frontage road from Presbyterian 
Hospital, make a right on Scripture Street, right on South Bonnie Brae Street, left on to West 
Hickory Street, and right on to North Texas Boulevard to Fouts Field. The proposed service 
change will increase the number of stops served by two (for a total of 27 stops), increase the 
inbound route miles by 3.56 (9.05 percent), and decrease the outbound route miles by 1.12 (2.82 
percent). Table 3 compares the stops and miles of DCTA’s existing NTX service with the 
proposed service stops and miles to document the percent change of each service factor. 

Table 3. NTX Proposed Service Compared to Current Service 

Current Service Proposed Service % Change 
Stops 25 27 8.00% 
Miles (inbound) 39.39 42.96 9.05% 
Miles (outbound) 39.59 38.47 -2.82% 

According to DCTA’s major service change policy, the modifications to NTX proposed for 
August 2018 do not constitute a major service change and, therefore, the NTX service change 
does not require a Title VI equity analysis. 

Eagle	Point	

DCTA proposes to alter the route of the Eagle Point service to better serve the University of 
North Texas (UNT) dorms and parking south of campus in August 2018. The route changes will 
increase total route miles by 52 percent. According to DCTA’s major service change policy, an 
increase in route miles of 25 percent or greater constitutes a major service change. Therefore, the 
proposed Eagle Point service changes require a Title VI equity analysis—documented in the 
Title VI analysis section, below. 

Mean	Green	Night	Rider	

As of July 2018, UNT operates Mean Green Night Rider (MGNR) service in-house. This service 
provides transportation around the UNT campus during nights and weekends—Monday through 
Sunday from 5:30pm to 7:00am (switching from 15 to 30 minute headways at 10:40pm) and 
Saturday and Sunday from 8:00 am to 5:54pm with 30 minute headways. DCTA is a contracted 
service provider for other UNT routes. As of August 2018, DCTA proposes to assume 
responsibility for operating MGNR on behalf of UNT. The only change proposed is DCTA’s 
operational responsibility—there will be no changes to route, schedule, or frequency. According 
to DCTA’s major service change policy, the proposal to assume responsibility for MGNR 
service on behalf of UNT constitutes a major service change because it will be a new DCTA 

UPDATED

159



5 

 

service. Therefore, the proposed MGNR service addition requires a Title VI equity analysis—
documented in the Title VI analysis section, below. 

North	Texan	

DCTA proposes to change the North Texan route by changing the service schedule and the route 
alignment. Service headways will change from 10 to 15 minutes during the day (7:00am to 
5:30pm) and from 18 to 30 minutes after 5:30pm until service ends at 10:30pm. The route’s 
alignment will change to add direct service to the Victory Hall at the UNT Athletics Complex. 
This change will increase the service route miles by 24 percent (0.92 miles). According to 
DCTA’s major service change policy, the modifications to the North Texan route proposed for 
August 2018 do not constitute a major service change and, therefore, the North Texan service 
change does not require a Title VI equity analysis. 

Title	VI	Analysis	–	Major	Service	Changes	

DCTA’s Title VI equity analysis process for service and fare changes has seven main steps, 
presented in Appendix A. This section documents the process of data collection and spatial 
analysis used to determine where low-income and minority persons and Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) households1 are located within the service area and near the three proposed 
service changes identified as major service changes—Route 8, Eagle Point, and MGNR. 

Data	Collection	and	Findings	

DCTA’s Title VI equity analysis process requires documentation of the affected area including 
information about the demographics of potential riders and the location of the proposed service 
change. To collect this information, TTI accessed the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Factfinder 
database and Tiger census block group shapefiles. The following sections present information 
about the number of low-income and minority residents and LEP households in each census 
block group in Denton County (DCTA’s service area) compared to those within one half mile 
(DCTA’s catchment area for bus service) of the bus stops associated with each service change to 
assess whether any of the major service changes result in a disparate impact or disproportionate 
burden. Appendix B presents maps showing the location of DCTA’s low-income, minority, and 
LEP populations within the half-mile catchment areas of Route 8, Eagle Point, and MGNR stops. 

Appendix C presents DCTA’s disparate impact and disproportionate burden definitions. 

Low‐Income	and	Minority	Populations	

In 2016, the most recently available census data set, DCTA’s service area population was 
754,6502. In the same year, on average, 8.9 percent of the service area population identified as 
low-income and 20.5 percent of the population identified as minority. To determine the 

                                                 
1 LEP households are not a group protected by Title VI requirements for service and fare 
changes, therefore, this data is calculated solely to inform DCTA’s customer service efforts. 
2 Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5‐Year Estimates. DCTA’s service area is Denton County. 

UPDATED

160



6 

 

populations affected by DCTA’s proposed August 2018 major service changes (Route 8, Eagle 
Point, and MGNR), TTI calculated the percent of low-income and minority residents within the 
catchment areas of each route. The following sections outline the findings for each service 
change compared to the service area average. 

Route	8	Low‐Income	and	Minority	Populations	

The proposed Route 8 modifications will affect 24 census block groups3 with a population of 
38,905. Table 4 presents the percent of low-income and minority persons affected by the service 
changes (the population within DCTA’s bus service catchment areas), compared to the service 
area average. Compared to DCTA’s service area, the low-income population within the Route 8 
catchment areas is 27.4 percent higher and the minority population is 3.3 percent higher than 
average.  

Table 4. Low-Income and Minority Population Affected by Route 8 Service Change 

 Low-Income Minority 
½ Mile Catchment Area Population 36.3% 23.8% 

Service Area Average 8.9% 20.5% 
Difference 27.4% 3.3% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates 

Because the proposed Route 8 service reduction will affect low-income and minority populations 
that are proportionally higher than DCTA’s service area average, according to DCTA’s policies, 
this proposed service change will result in both a disparate impact and disproportionate burden. 
However, when compared to current service, the proposed service change improves service to 
these populations. Table 5 presents the percent of low-income and minority persons within the 
current (as of July 2018) Route 8 catchment areas compared to the same populations within the 
catchment areas that result from DCTA’s proposed service change—the proposed service 
changes will provide transit service to more low-income and minority persons than the current 
service.  

Table 5. Low-Income and Minority Population Served by Route 8 – Current vs. Proposed 

 Low-Income Minority 
Current Service ½ Mile Catchment Areas 34.8% 23.3% 

Proposed Service ½ Mile Catchment Areas 36.3% 23.8% 
Difference 1.5% 0.5% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates 

Eagle	Point	and	MGNR	Low‐Income	and	Minority	Populations	

The Eagle Point and MGNR service changes affect the same census block groups. Therefore, this 
section presents findings relevant to both service changes. 

                                                 
3 DCTA’s service area consists of 378 census block groups. 

UPDATED

161



7 

 

The proposed Eagle Point and MGNR modifications will affect 17 census block groups4 with a 
population of 24,631. Table 6 presents the percent of low-income and minority persons affected 
by the service changes (the population within DCTA’s bus service catchment areas), compared 
to the service area average. The low-income population and minority populations within the 
Eagle Point and MGNR catchment areas are higher (31.8 and 1.7 percent, respectively) than 
DCTA’s service area average.  

Table 6. Low-Income and Minority Population Affected by Eagle Point and MGNR Service 
Change 

 Low-Income Minority 
½ Mile Catchment Area Population 40.7% 22.2% 

Service Area Average 8.9% 20.5% 
Difference 31.8% 1.7% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates 

According to DCTA’s policies, because the proposed changes to Eagle Point and MGNR 
increases service and the low-income and minority populations affected by the Eagle Point and 
MGNR service changes are higher than DCTA’s service area average, these proposed service 
changes will not result in either a disparate impact or disproportionate burden.  

Limited	English	Proficiency	Populations	

DCTA includes populations with limited English proficiency (LEP) in the transit agency’s equity 
analysis requirements so that staff is aware of the status of this population. As with the 
low-income and minority analysis presented previously, TTI calculated the percent of LEP 
households within the catchment areas of Route 8, Eagle Point, and MGNR. The following 
sections outline the findings for each service change compared to the service area average. 

Route	8	LEP	Households	

Within the census block groups in the Route 8 catchment area, 25.3 percent of the households 
identified as limited English speaking in 2016—0.9 percent more than the service area average. 
Table 7 compares the limited English speaking populations within Route 8 catchment areas with 
the county average. 

Table 7. LEP Households Affected by Route 8 Service Change 

 
LEP 

Households 
½ Mile Catchment Area Population 25.3% 

Service Area Average 24.4% 
Difference 0.9% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 
2016 5-Year Estimates 

                                                 
4 DCTA’s service area consists of 378 census block groups. 

UPDATED

162



8 

 

Eagle	Point	and	MGNR	LEP	Households	

The Eagle Point and MGNR service changes affect the same census block groups. Therefore, this 
section presents findings relevant to both service changes. 

Within the census block groups in the Eagle Point/MGNR catchment area, 20.0 percent of the 
households identified as limited English speaking in 2016—4.4 percent less than the service area 
average. Table 8 compares the limited English speaking populations within Eagle Point and 
MGNR catchment areas with the county average. 

Table 8. LEP Households Affected by Eagle Point and MGNR Service Change 

 
LEP 

Households 
½ Mile Catchment Area Population 20.0% 

Service Area Average 24.4% 
Difference -4.4% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 
2016 5-Year Estimates 

Review	Service	Change	per	Service	Performance	and	Design	Standards	

Section four of DCTA’s 2016 Title VI program states that the transit agency will follow a set of 
guidelines (service performance and design standards) for establishing/amending transit service. 
According to DCTA’s 2016 Title VI program, these guidelines, “provide a framework for 
guiding decisions by which services are created, expanded, and evaluated. By providing a 
defined set of performance standards, DCTA staff and the Board will have consistent direction 
on how to allocate, prioritize, and deploy services.” 

DCTA organizes service and design standards in the following categories. Appendix D presents 
complete descriptions 

 Route classification. 

 Desired spans of service. 

 Desired minimum service frequency. 

 Desired minimum route-level operating standards. 

 Performance benchmarks. 

 Fixed-route service design guidance. 

 Demand response performance measures and standards. 

 Community design preferences. 

 Bus stop placement. 

 Shelter and bench placement. 

As proposed, DCTA’s August 2018 service changes meet the requirements of the service 
performance and design standards by maintaining DCTA’s established span of service, service 

UPDATED

163



9 

 

frequency, and route-level standards. Assessment of the performance metrics outlined by the 
standards cannot be completed until the modified service has been in place long enough to 
generate adequate data. 

Conclusion	

According to the Title VI equity analysis findings, DCTA’s proposed Eagle Point and MGNR 
service changes will not result in adverse impacts. However, the transit agency’s proposed Route 
8 service changes will result in both a disparate impact and a disproportionate burden.  

According to FTA Circular 4702.1B, if a service change results in either a disparate impact or a 
disproportionate burden the transit agency is required to, “avoid, minimize, or mitigate impacts 
where practicable.” The Circular describes such actions as follows: 

Alternatives could include the availability of other lines or services, potentially involving transfers 
and/or other modes, which connect affected riders with destinations that they commonly access. 
Depending on the nature of impacts, service-related mitigation could include strategies such as 
alignment or frequency changes to nearby lines or services to offer more convenient access to 
affected areas.  

Despite the identified impact and burden that result from the proposed Route 8 service changes, 
as outlined in the analysis section, the proposed service changes will increase access to transit 
service for low-income and minority populations when compared to current service. 

UPDATED

164



 

10 

Appendix	A	–	Fare	and	Service	Equity	Analysis	Process	

To conduct a Fare and Service Equity Analysis, DCTA uses the following process: 

1. As soon as any change in fare or service is proposed, DCTA staff describes in detail the 
proposed change. The detailed description included what routes, schedules, and service 
indicators (level and/or quality of service) would be affected. Additionally, staff describes 
the need or impetus for change. 

2. A determination is then made if the changes qualify as a major fare or service change under 
the Agency’s Major Fare and Service Change Policy. In the future, a record will be kept of 
both determinations. 

3. If the determination is yes, further analysis is required and public participation is 
warranted. 

4. A comparison is made to determine the difference between the existing service and 
proposed service for those impacted by the change. 

5. To analyze possible adverse effects, DCTA staff uses the following steps: 
a. Determine the affected area. 
b. Describe the demographic and ridership data and ridership data being used for the 

analysis and how they were collected. 
c. Describe how the data will be used to determine if the proposed change will have 

an adverse effect. 
d. Compare the location of the proposed change to the most recent demographic data 

on file. Is the affected area a minority, low-income, or LEP area according to the 
data? 

e. Compare the ridership population that will be affected by the change as compared 
to the general ridership population. Could there be a potential disparate impact or 
disproportionate burden? Explain. 

f. Analyze the data to describe the details and extent of the possible impacts. 
i. Create maps showing the affected areas and demographic data along with 

route information. 
ii. Create tables showing impacts of each type of change and the affected and 

overall ridership population. 
iii. Determine whether the proportion of minorities and/or low-income 

population that is affected is significant when compared to the general 
population set using thresholds designed in each policy. If not, finalize the 
analysis and provide to the Board. If so, steps need to be taken to describe 
these negative effects and to develop alternative options that mitigate, 
avoid, or minimize these effects. 

iv. Repeat the analysis for any alternative options. 
v. Present the finding to the Board of Directors for review and acceptance. 

6. The Public Participation Plan determines adequate comment period and appropriate 
communication and participation methods. 

7. All comments are recorded and presented to the Board of Directors as part of the decision 
making process. 

UPDATED

165



 

11 

Appendix	B	–	Mapping	

Mapping demographic data allows transit planners to visualize the location of specific 
populations and how a given change in service may effect that population. 

This section presents the following maps: 

Figure 1. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change _______ 12 
Figure 2. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change __________ 13 
Figure 3. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change ______________ 14 
Figure 7. Low-income Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change __________ 15 
Figure 8. Minority Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change _____________ 16 
Figure 9. LEP Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change ________________ 17 
Figure 10. Low-income Population Concentrations – MGNR Service Change _____________ 18 
Figure 11. Minority Population Concentrations – MGNR Service Change ________________ 19 
Figure 12. LEP Population Concentrations – MGNR Service Change ___________________ 20 

 

UPDATED

166



 

12 

 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 1. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change 

UPDATED

167



 

13 

 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 2. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change 

UPDATED

168



 

14 

 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 3. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – Route 8 Service Change 

UPDATED

169



 

 

15 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 4. Low-income Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change UPDATED

170



 

 

16 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 5. Minority Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change UPDATED

171



 

 

17 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 6. LEP Population Concentrations – Eagle Point Service Change UPDATED

172



 

 

18 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 7. Low-income Population Concentrations – MGNR Service Change UPDATED

173



 

 

19 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 8. Minority Population Concentrations – MGNR Service Change UPDATED

174



 

 

20 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 9. LEP Population Concentrations – MGNR Service ChangeUPDATED

175



 

21 

Appendix	C	–	Disparate	Impact	and	Disproportionate	Burden	Policy	
 
Minority Disparate Impact Policy (Service Equity Analysis) 
 
When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to 
determine when a service or fare would have a disparate impact on minority populations: 
 
1. Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of minority passengers on an 

affected route is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership (within the approximate 
dataset’s margin of error) by transit classification (local, express, community circulators, 
campus routes, etc). 
 

2. Route Level Expansion or Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service 
area expansion is considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same 
route or other routes, and the route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves 
non-minority and/or non-low-income geographic areas while the route(s) considered for 
reduction predominately serve minority and/or low-income geographic areas, then a 
disproportionate burden may be determined. 
 
A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of minority passengers on an 
affected route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s minority 
ridership percentage by transit classification and if the percentage of minority passengers on 
an affected route considered for service reduction is greater than the transit system’s minority 
ridership percentage by transit classification. 
 

3. Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is 
considered, a disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of minority 
passengers using the affected fare is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership 
percentage. 
 

4. The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population 
will be derived from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid 
regional on-board and destination survey; most recently completed customer surveys and 
demographic data by census tract. 

 
Low Income Disproportionate Burden Policy (Service Equity Analysis) 
 
When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to 
determine when a service or fare change would have a disproportionate burden on low-income 
populations: 
 
1. Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of low-income passengers on an 

affected route is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership (within the approximate 
dataset’s margin of error) by transit classification (local, express, community circulators, 
campus routes, etc.). 
 

2. Route Level Expansion or Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service 
area expansion is considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same 
route or other routes, and the route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves 
non-minority and/or non-low-income geographic areas while the route(s) considered for 
reduction predominately serve minority and/or low-income geographic areas, then a 
disproportionate burden may be determined. 
 
A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of low-income passengers on 
an affected route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s low-income 

UPDATED

176



 

22 

ridership percentage by transit classification and if the percentage of low-income passengers 
on an affected route considered for service reduction is greater than the transit system’s low-
income ridership percentage by transit classification. 
 

3. Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is 
considered, a disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of low-income 
passengers using the affected fare is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership 
percentage. 
 

4. The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population 
will be derived from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid 
regional on-board and destination survey; most recently completed customer surveys and 
demographic data by census tract. 

	 	

UPDATED

177



 

23 

Appendix	D	–	Service	Performance	and	Design	Standards	

UPDATED

178



 

24 

UPDATED

179



 

25 

UPDATED

180



 

26 

UPDATED

181



 

27 

UPDATED

182



 

28 

UPDATED

183



 

29 

UPDATED

184



 

30 

UPDATED

185



 

31 

UPDATED

186



 

32 

UPDATED

187



33 

UPDATED

188



UPDATED

189



UPDATED

190



Regional Fare Type
Current DCTA 

Fare
Proposed 

DCTA Fare

% Change 
Current to 
Proposed

Regional 2-Hour Pass 5.00$                6.00$                20%

Regional 2-Hour Pass Reduced 1.25$                 1.50$                 20%

Regional Day Pass 10.00$              12.00$              20%

Regional Day Pass Reduced 2.50$                3.00$                20%

Regional 7-Day Pass 50.00$             60.00$             20%

Regional 10-Pack of Day Passes 70.00$             84.00$              20%

Regional 31-Day Pass 160.00$            192.00$            20%

Regional 31-Day Pass Reduced 40.00$             48.00$              20%

Regional Annual Pass 1,600.00$         1,920.00$         20%

Regional Annual Pass Reduced 480.00$           576.00$            20%

Local Fare Type
Current DCTA 

Fare

Proposed 
DCTA Fare 
Promotion

% Change 
Current to 
Proposed

Local 2-Hour Pass 3.00$                1.50$                 -50%

Local 2-Hour Pass Reduced 1.25$                 0.75$                -40%

Local Day Pass 6.00$                3.00$                -50%

Local Day Pass Reduced 2.50$                1.50$                 -40%

Local 7-Day Pass 25.00$              15.00$               -40%

Local 10-Pack of Day Passes 40.00$             20.00$             -50%

Local 31-Day Pass 90.00$             48.00$              -47%

Local 31-Day Pass Reduced 40.00$             24.00$              -40%

Local Annual Pass 650.00$           480.00$           -26%

Local Annual Pass Reduced 480.00$           240.00$           -50%

Local Summer Youth Pass 30.00$              20.00$             -33%

Connect Fare Type
Current DCTA 

Fare

Proposed 
DCTA Fare 
Promotion

% Change 
Current to 
Proposed

Connect One-Way Trip 1.50$                 1.00$                -33%

Connect One-Way Trip Reduced 0.75$                0.50$                -33%

Connect 10-Ride Book 13.00$               9.00$                -31%

Connect 31-Day Pass 45.00$              30.00$              -33%

Connect 31-Day Pass Reduced 25.00$              15.00$               -40%

Connect Annual Pass 450.00$           300.00$           -33%

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

PROPOSED REGIONAL FARE CHANGES

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

PROPOSED FARE PROMOTIONS

191



1

2018 April Public Meetings
April 16, 18 & 24, 2018

Engagement Overview

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 2

Engagement Area:
Cities of Lewisville, Denton and Highland Village 

Engagement Timeframe:
April 13 – May 4, 2018

Public Meetings:
A series of open house meetings were held in DCTA’s three 
member cities in April 2018. The meetings were open house 
style to give the attendees flexibility in their time of 
attendance and offered people time to peruse the 
proposals at their own pace. An online presentation and a 
dedicated webpage showcasing the information 
presented at the three meetings was hosted on 
RideDCTA.net with an available comment form.

192



2

Engagement Overview

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 3

Engagement Objective

Solicit public input on the following topics: 

• August 2018 Service Changes

• Upcoming Fare Increases and Changes

• Job Access and Connectivity along 35W and Sam Rayburn

• Corridors Access Policies & Procedures

• Lyft Partnership and Bikeshare Proposal for Southeast Denton

• EPA Brownfields Grant – Subsurface Investigation

• Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail

• Access Policies and Procedures Update

MEETING DETAILS

193



3

Meeting Details

Lewisville Public Meeting

Location: Lewisville City Hall Lobby
In conjunction with the regularly scheduled city 
council meeting.

Date: Monday, April 16, 2018

Time: 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

5 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 5

Meeting Details

Denton Public Meeting

Location: Downtown Denton Transit Center 

Date: Wednesday, April 18, 2018

Time: 3 p.m. – 7 p.m.

36 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 6

194



4

Meeting Details

Highland Village Public Meeting

Location:
Highland Village Municipal Complex Lobby
In conjunction with the regularly scheduled city 
council meeting.

Date: Tuesday, April 24, 2018

Time: 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

15 individual interactions

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 7

SOCIAL MEDIA OUTREACH

195



5

Facebook - Organic

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 9

Post Dates: 
4/13, 4/17, 4/19, 4/26, 4/30

People Reached: 565

Total Engagements: 6

Twitter - Organic

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 10

Post Dates: 
4/17, 4/20, 4/30

People Reached: 1,180

Total Engagements: 12

196



6

Facebook - Paid

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 11

Ad Run Dates:

April 1 – 17, 2018

Facebook - Paid

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 12

Ad Run Dates:

April 17– 25, 2018

197



7

Twitter – Paid V1 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 13

Twitter – Paid V2 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 14

198



8

• Click to edit Master text styles
• Second level

• Third level
• Fourth level

• Fifth level

Social Media Comprehensive Results

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 15

• Days Posted – 33

• Total Impressions – 113,335

• Total Engagements – 5,871

DIGITAL MARKETING OUTREACH

199



9

Email Marketing Statistics

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 17

• Email send: April 13, 2018
• Total Sent: 5,701
• Delivered: 5,568
• Opens: 776
• Unique Opens: 97
• Total Clicks: 75

Website Statistics

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 18

200



10

MEDIA RELATIONS

Media Relations

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 20

Publication Mentions
• Denton Record-Chronicle

• Lewisville Texan Journal
• Cross Timbers Gazette

201



11

Traditional Advertising

Traditional Advertising

Newspaper Ad’s

Publication Dates: 
• April 1
• April 2
• April 8
• April 9
• April 15
• April 16
• April 22
• April 23

Placement 
Publications:
• Carrollton Leader
• Coppell Gazette
• Lewisville Leader
• The Colony Courier

Leader
• The Lake Cities Sun
• The Leader

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 22

202



12

OVERALL COMMUNITY OUTREACH STATISTICS

Community Outreach

Events

• Colorpalooza passed out flyers to 150 attendees
• UNT Apartment Fair spoke with 80 attendees
• Highland Village Chamber Luncheon made verbal announcement to 80 attendees

Direct Mail Campaign

• Sent 327 letters to businesses, non-profits and apartments along the proposed service change routes

Phone Calls

• Made 30 phone calls to businesses, non-profits and apartments along the proposed service change
routes

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 24

203



13

Community Outreach - Email
Emails
250 emails sent to contacts who distributed to their 
respective audiences via their databases.

Emailed entities included: 
• City of Denton
• City of Highland Village
• Denton ISD
• Denton CVB
• Lewisville CVB
• Lewisville ISD
• SEDA
• All the offices of Lewisville local elected state

officials(State House, State Senate)
• The Lewisville Texan Journal
• The Lewisville Leader
• Community Impact Newspaper (Lewisville, Flower

Mound, Highland Village)
• Citizen Advisory Team members
• UNT
• TWU
• Denton Black Chamber of Commerce

• Denton Hispanic Chamber of Commerce
• Denton County Friends of the Family
• Salvation Army of Denton County
• North Central Texas College
• The Denton Record Chronicle
• The Dallas Morning News
• The Fort Worth Star-Telegram
• FOX 4 News
• NBC 5 News
• WFAA News 8
• CBS 11 News
• Noticias 23 News
• CW33 News
• Telemundo 39 News
• Suburban Parent
• DFW Child

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 25

Partner Sharing

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 26

Partner Sharing
• 10 partner shares on: 4/9, 4/13 and 4/16
• Total Engagements: 39

204



14

BUDGET

Budget
Budget Breakdown:
• HCK2 1(2.5 Hours) – Resizing & Print Ad Placement: $1,750
• HCK2 (9.5 Hours) – Social media Creative, Posting & Reporting - $1,300
• Print Advertising: $4,049
• Social Media Advertising: $1,524.22
• Display Boards: $315.90
• DDTC Poster: $27.29
• Flyers: $162.86
• Direct Mail Outreach – Envelopes: $222.76 (Remaining envelopes to be used for future outreach.)
• Direct Mail Outreach – Postage: $164
• Event Supplies – Easels: $180.45
• Event Supplies – Snacks, Dot Stickers, Plastic Document Holders, etc: $88.51
• Pull Up Banners: $327.04 (Evergreen creative will be used at future public meetings.)

TOTAL: $10,112.03 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 28

205



15

OVERALL ENGAGEMENT STATISTICS

Overall Engagement Statistics
Total Promotional Timeframe

• April 1 - May 4, 2018

Total Impressions Across All Efforts
• 411,193

Total Engagements Across All Efforts
• 7,210

Total Number of Attendees 
• 63

Total Number of Comments
• 82

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 30

206



16

COMMENTS 

Lewisville Comments
Topic: Lewisville Route 26
New senior living community and apartments. 
Why does Route 26 not serve them?

Topic: Highland Village Shuttle
No stops on Southern portion of shuttle route. 
Potential for stops at McGee or CVS at Garden 
Ridge. Use community on-demand two times a 
week with Regional pass. Not sure changes with 
Lyft will be as convenient.

Topic: A-train Special Event Service
I would really like special event service to and 
from American Airlines Center for Mavs and Stars 
games. Even if it was one train to pick up after 
the event.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 32

207



17

Denton Comments
Topic: Service Hours
Please make the buses run much later on Saturdays. 
6 p.m. is the latest? Monday through Friday til
midnight extend hours of operation for buses in 
Denton.

Need later bus service in Denton. 

Consider Sunday service for my shopping and travel.

Topic: Fare Increase
Concerned about the increase in ticket fee. 
Wouldn’t mind having promo’s though.

Find an alternate way to not increase fare. Buying 
two different tickets is difficult, not convenient.

I am a daily rider. Keep the 10 pack of 
local/regional fare. Work to stop the Regional fare 
increase. Basically, if I had to choose between 
having one Regional day pass for $12 or buying two 
local day passes for $5 each, I’d take the latter.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 33

Denton Comments
Topic: DDTC
Please put a clock in the Denton Downtown Center.

We should have recycling containers inside the DDTC!

They are closing the DDTC at 6:56 p.m. not 7 p.m.

I think the DDTC should be open the same hours that the buses are running.

Topic: Access
Excellent Access bus driver (George, 5 a.m.) Always feel safe!

Thanks for extended access hours.

Topic: Route 4
The 4 is the only way that you can get to University. Pluses – the 7 and 8 so you can go to Presby either way.

#4 = good. Connectors from University to Golden Triangle plus MedPark via Nottingham, Audra, Woodrow. University 
via Carroll, Elm and Locust. Denton Community Health Clinic stop.

Topic: Route 5
Buses are dwelling way too long at DDTC for no reason.

Connect North Lakes Park Route 5. Route 1 connect to Eureka Park (South Lakes).

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 34

208



18

Denton Comments
Topic: Route 6
Route 6 try a Saturday bus.

I have submitted several requests (orally) for a stop on Route 6 by the North Branch Library (inbound). I have not 
received any replies to my request. Each person at the city makes the final decisions. If they reject this request I’d 
like to know the reason. There is a bike path on Windsor where the stop would be, but there are no “No Parking” 
signs, so cars are parked there during school hours and school days.

I can’t take Route 6 anymore. It’s hard for me to take Route 6 or 7. Because I can’t walk a long way anymore. So I 
would like for you to have a Route 6 go back like it was before. Thank you.
Kroger and Walmart long connection to Route 4.

Topic: Route 7/Route 8 Change
Consider a smaller bus for one of the two buses during peak times. When one bus gets behind often, send a small 
added bus. East bound takes too long to get home.

Topic: DCTA
Excellent staff. 

Thanks for listening!

Overall DCTA is great!

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 35

Denton Comments
Topic: Denton Airport Zone
Good idea! Please make it happen.

Topic: A-train
I take A-train back and forth to Trinity Mills. Excellent!

Topic: Service
More Service to parks in Denton

Service to Frisco and Collin County.

Service to Flower Mound.

Please make the buses run much later on Saturdays. 6 p.m. is the latest? Monday through Friday til midnight extend 
hours of operation for buses in Denton.

Need later bus service in Denton. 

Consider Sunday service for my shopping and travel.

The bus schedule should be extended until 9 p.m. 6 days a week.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 36

209



19

Denton Comments
Topic: Lakeview Zone
Would it be worth holding an additional public meeting specifically for corporate park?

I am an annual pass holder and ride Route 21 in Lewisville approximately 4 times a week. I do not want an 
additional cost for an on-demand type system. I currently have about a ½ mile walk from bus stop 770465 to 
my office. If the stop cold be moved that would be appreciated. If Route 21 needs to change to save costs, 
what about doing away with the non-business rider times 9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.? What you are currently doing 
works 90% of the time (except for my walk, which probably good for me). On-demand would be acceptable 
if there would be no additional charge.

Comment from 2 regular riders. Route 21 in Lakeview area – drivers are always early or late and will totally pass 
by people waiting at a stop or walking to a stop. We have to break the new drivers in! Love Steve on Route 21! 
And Adele. One of the 2 regular riders said she is holding off on renewing her annual pass until DCTA makes a 
decision on the Lakeview zone. She wants a fixed route.

Topic: Opportunities to Volunteer
I am so excited about this. Due to a vision problem I have needs for this type of service. I have waited and 
wanted this for a long time. I would like to volunteer.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 37

Denton Comments
Topic: Transit Transfers System
Transfers should be used. I transfer for all buses. The meaning is to go by the amount of hours that remain on 
the transfer. In most typical situations it should give the rider a 3 hour transfer ticket time that works for all buses 
(including return trip).

Topic: Route 65
Like the Route 65 proposal.

Topic: Stop and Shelter Requests
More sheds near connector route exchange points. Access to airport area also.

Restroom at Trinity Mills – door operated by ticket (valid ticket).

Please put emergency phones at the train stops. 

Topic: Fares
Concerned about the increase in ticket fee. Wouldn’t mind having promos though.

Find an alternate way to not increase fare. Buying two different tickets is difficult, not convenient.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 38

210



20

Highland Village Comments
Topic: General
Would love to see more mass transit!

Topic: Highland Village Lyft Service
I currently ride Community On-Demand using a 
Regional reduced pass. Willing to try Lyft if it was more 
affordable. 

Topic: Not Enough Time to Purchase Ticket On Platform
Concerned about time to buy a ticket at Trinity Mills. 

Topic: Fare Changes
I am with Southwest Airlines. I represent a group of 
SWA employees who purchase Regional passes from 
DCTA. We would like for you to keep the fares low to 
keep encouraging people to ride.

Not in favor of fare increase for Regional pass. 

Please make fares comparable to current levels –
particularly with reduced fares.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 39

Highland Village Comments
Topic: Route Service
Route 4 delays are an issue.

Route 2 from Walmart to Route 6 transfer time is a concern.

I wish that DCTA would provide buses and train services on Sunday. I truly enjoy the services Mon-Fri and would love to 
see buses and trains extend more late arrivals and more services on Sunday.

Interested in providing service to the CACDC.

Requesting service at CAC.

Shorter routes make travel from my home to 121 bus at Bellaire much less convenient. This location is a community 
center “Next Steps Center”. It is an important destination.

Saturday service needs more frequency.

Topic: Highland Village Station
Shade from cover is wrong direction. Needs to be wider. As it is now the shade is over in the parking lot.

Topic: Service Hours
I drive to Carrollton to pick up DART because hours aren’t late enough.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 40

211



21

Online Comments
Topic: Route and Schedule Information
Yesterday (Apr. 18) I was at the downtown Denton DCTA 
building. I was given a packet of changes that would be 
happening at DCTA. One of these was labeled as 
Proposed Commuter Bus Service Serving Hebron, 
Southwest Medical District, and West End. There was no 
info included in the handout. If DCTA is planning such 
where would the bus stops be? I ask because I take DCTA 
trains to/from Trinity Mills then switch to DART trains and go 
to West End Area. DCTA used to have a bus that I took to 
the West End Area years ago before the A train.

Topic: Route 21
When I moved to Lewisville I chose Stone Creek because 
it has bust shelters/stops for both inbound and outbound, 
right at my door. I use this service every day. If it changes I 
may not cope with additional walking. I may purchase 
another car. Please don’t change 21 on E. Southwest 
Pkwy.

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 41

Online Comments
Topic: Drivers
The drivers of Routes 5&6 need to learn to make up the time that they are early along University and not Bell. I work at 
TWU and when the bus arrives at the stop on Administration, they cannot stop on Bell because they get a long line of 
cars waiting behind them. I have missed the bus a number of times because they are running early. 

I must say that probably 95% of the drivers are great. 

Topic: Service Hours
I would really like to see Sunday service.

I think the DDTC should be open the same hours that the buses are running.

Topic: Mechanical Issues
The mechanical issues and breakdowns are horrible! They need to stop. DCTA needs to get on the repairs of the 
vehicles so the number of issues goes down. 

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 42

212



22

Display Board Comments

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 43

Corridors of Interest for Job Access & 
Connectivity

ORIGIN DESTINATION OF INTEREST

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport)

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport)

A (Downtown Denton) N (Downtown Fort Worth)

A (Downtown Denton) J (DFW Airport) 
O (Downtown Dallas) 
F (The Colony)
K (114 Corridor)

The map below was shared at the public meetings. Attendees were asked to identify their individual 
origin and destinations for job access and connectivity that they would be interested in. Those results 
are below.

Display Board Comments

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 44

3 votes Maintaining the current cost of fare.
(Regional & Local)

1 vote Convenience of purchasing one 
regional fare vs. two local fares.

1 vote Improved bus frequency.
1 vote Additional mid-day A-train service.
4 votes Sunday bus service.
1 vote Southbound shuttle service stops in 

Highland Village.
0 votes Last/first mile connection.
0 votes Improved A-train frequency. 
0 votes Late-night A-train service.

WHICH IS MOST IMPORTANT TO YOU?
Public meeting attendees were asked to place a sticker next to the item that was most important to them. 

Blank spaces were also provided if there was something of importance not listed.

213



23

Comment Takeaways
• Interest in:

• Service between the DDTC and DFW Airport
• Later bus service
• Bus service on Sundays

• Concerns about:
• Increase in regional fare
• Lack of fixed-route service in the Lewisville Lakeview Zone

• Would like DCTA to consider:
• Matching DDTC hours to service hours
• Better transfer times when making service changes

• Kudos:
• DCTA staff is excellent

DCTA April Public Meeting 2018 45

214



1 

 

 
Technical Memorandum – Equity Analysis: Regional Fare Change 
and A-train Fare Free Zones 

TO:  Michelle Bloomer, Denton County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM: Zachary Elgart and James Cardenas  

Texas A&M Transportation Institute 
 

DATE: July 20, 2018 

SUBJECT: Title VI Analysis –Regional Fare Change and A-train Fare Free Zones 

Background	and	Purpose	

The Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA) proposed to implement two fare changes 
in August 2018: 1) DCTA will increase the regional transit fare to match regional service 
partners and 2) DCTA will make a previously promotional fare free zone on the transit agency’s 
A-train permanent.  

This technical memorandum briefly describes each fare change and documents findings from the 
required Title VI fare equity analyses to determine whether either change results in a disparate 
impact or a disproportionate burden1. 

Regional	Fare	Increase	

In May of 2018, DCTA announced that the transit agency would implement fare changes 
affecting regional fare pass pricing in August, 2018. According to the proposed changes, DCTA 
will increase regional transit fares by 20 percent (for example, the cost of a regional 2-hour pass 
will increase from $5.00 to $6.00) in response to fare changes implemented by regional transit 
partners. The fare increase will affect regular and reduce fares. Table 1 presents all proposed 
regional fare changes. 

Table 1. Current and Proposed Regional Fare Pass 

Regional Fares 
Current (2018) 
DCTA Fare 

Proposed 
DCTA Fare 

% Change 
Current to 
Proposed 

Regional 2-Hour Pass $5.00 $6.00 20%
Regional 2-Hour Pass Reduced $1.25 $1.50 20%
Regional Midday  

                                                 
1 Appendix A presents DCTA’s Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Definitions in full. 

Transit Mobility Program 
Texas A&M Transportation Institute 
701 N. Post Oak Rd 
Houston, TX 77024 
713-613-9241 
tti.tamu.edu/group/transit-mobility 

215

UPDATED



2 

Table 1. Current and Proposed Regional Fare Pass – Continued 

Regional Midday Reduced  
Regional Day Pass $10.00 $12.00 20%
Regional Day Pass Reduced $2.50 $3.00 20%
Regional 7-Day Pass $50.00 $60.00 20%
Regional 10-Pack of Day Passes $70.00 $84.00 20%
Regional 31-Day Pass $160.00 $192.00 20%
Regional 31-Day Pass Reduced $40.00 $48.00 20%
Regional Annual Pass $1,600.00 $1,920.00 20%
Regional Annual Pass Reduced $480.00 $576.00 20%
Source: DCTA 

A‐train	Fare	Free	Zones	

In September 2017, DCTA introduced promotional fare free zones on the transit agency’s 
A-train commuter rail service. The purpose of the zones is to encourage use of the MedPark 
station and increase ridership from the residents around the Hebron station that previously chose 
to drive to DART stations (south of DCTA’s Trinity Mills) to avoid paying the regional fare. The 
fare free zones includes service between the Downtown Denton Transit Center and the MedPark 
Station and between the Hebron and Trinity Mills Stations--the segments of the A-train route at 
the northern and southern terminus. Figure 1 displays the A-train route and the fare free zones. 

 

Source: TTI visualization of DCTA and NCTCOG shapefiles. 

Figure 1. A-train Route and Fare Free Zones 

As of July 2018, DCTA elected to make the fare free zone permanent, therefore the transit 
agency is required to conduct a Title VI equity analyses on the fare change (the fare before 
DCTA introduced the fare free zone was $3.00 for local service or $5.00 to connect to regional 
service).  

216

UPDATED



3 

Title	VI	Fare	Equity	Analysis	

DCTA’s Title VI equity analysis process for service and fare changes has seven main steps, 
presented in Appendix B. This section documents the process of data collection and spatial 
analysis used to determine where low-income2 and minority persons and Limited English 
Proficiency (LEP) households3 are located within the relevant service area and within the 
catchment area of the A-train stations included in the fare free zones. 

Data	Collection	and	Findings	

DCTA’s Title VI equity analysis process requires documentation of the affected area including 
information about the demographics of potential riders and the location of the proposed change. 
To collect this information, TTI accessed the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Factfinder 
database and TIGER census block group shapefiles. To address FTA requirements for fare equity 
analyses, TTI used on-board survey information from the North Central Texas Council of 
Governments (NCTCOG) 2014 regional transit on-board survey.  

Using census and on-board survey data, TTI evaluated whether a disparate impact and/or a 
disproportionate burden exists for the proposed regional fare changes, according to DCTA’s 
disparate impact and disproportionate burden policies. Appendix C presents maps showing the 
location of DCTA’s low-income, minority, and LEP populations for the entire DCTA service 
area and the A-Train free fare zones. 

Regional	Fare	Pass	Change	–	Fare	Use	and	Demographics	

The regional fare change affects riders across all fixed-route services of DCTA. According to 
DCTA’s website, regional fare passes are, “valid on the A-train, Connect Bus, Highland Village 
Connect Shuttle, Highland Village Community On-Demand, North Texas Xpress (between 
Denton and Fort Worth), UNT Campus Shuttle, and NCTC Campus Shuttle. Required for trips 
taken outside of DCTA service area. Includes access to fixed-route bus and rail services operated 
by DART, TRE and FWTA. Excludes Access Service, Frisco Services as well as DART and 
FWTA’s paratransit services.” Because all DCTA fixed-route modes may be access with a 
regional fare, TTI produced an analysis at the service area level. This analysis reviews DCTA’s 
proposed fare changes and compares service-area wide demographics to the 2014 NCTCOG 
regional transit on-board survey findings. DCTA is proposing to raise all regional fares by 20 
percent (regular and reduced fares). Table 2 presents data showing the rate of regional fare use 
by people that identify as a minority and people with low-incomes.  

  

                                                 
2 DCTA defines low‐income as follows: “persons with an income of 80 percent or less of the 
national per capita income” and “residential land use areas within census tracts where the 
average per capita income is 80 percent or less of the national per capita income.” 
3 LEP households are not a group protected by Title VI requirements for service and fare 
changes, therefore, this data is calculated solely to inform DCTA’s customer service efforts. 

217

UPDATED



4 

Table 2. Regional Fare Pass Usage by Minority and Low-Income Status 

  Minority Low-Income 
Fare # of 

Users 
Yes No Other Yes** No 

No 
Response 

Regional 
Fare 

338 51.18% 48.22% 0.59% 42.31% 31.95% 25.74%

Source: NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-board survey. 
* TTI analyzed survey results from riders that indicated using Regional Fare Passes and University 
Regional Fare passes. 
** DCTA defines low income as 80 percent of the national per capita income. TTI interprets 
“national per capita income” as the national median income. In 2014, according to the U.S. Census, 
the national median income was $53,657 - 80 percent of which is $42,925.60. The 2014 NCTCOG 
regional transit on-board survey income categories do not align with this definition, therefore this 
data represents all respondents with incomes up to $49,999. 

Low‐Income	and	Minority	Populations	

Because the regional pass is valid for transit service that operates in Dallas and Tarrant counties, 
TTI analyzed each county’s low-income and minority populations in addition to the DCTA 
service area average (DCTA’s service area is Denton County). Table 3 compares the low-income 
and minority populations in each Denton, Dallas, and Tarrant Counties with the demographics of 
regional fare pass users according to the NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-board survey. 
Survey data includes DCTA users who answered “Regional” or “Regional University Pass” for 
pass type. This comparison shows that DCTA’s service area regional fare pass users, on average, 
are more likely to identify as low-income or minority users, representing a higher proportion of 
riders than the relevant county average. 

Table 3. Low-Income and Minority Regional Fare Users Compare to Service Area Average 

 Denton County Dallas County Tarrant County 

 Low-
Income Minority 

Low-
Income Minority 

Low-
Income Minority 

Regional Fare Users 42.31% 51.18% 42.31% 51.18% 42.31% 51.18%
Service Area Average 8.9% 20.5% 18.6% 39.3% 14.6% 30.2%

Difference 33.41% 30.54% 23.71% 11.74% 27.71% 20.84%
Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-
board survey. 

Limited	English	Proficiency	Populations	

DCTA includes populations with limited English proficiency (LEP) in the transit agency’s equity 
analysis requirements so that staff is aware of the status of this population. LEP information is 
not included in NCTCOG’s 2014 regional transit on-board survey, however, the survey includes 
a similar question deriving how well a passenger speaks English. Passengers could choose from 
“Very Well”, “Well”, “Less than Well”, or “Not at All”. TTI used answers where passengers 
indicated, “Less than Well” or “Not at All” and compared with LEP data from the U.S. Census 
Bureau’s ACS 2012-2016 5-Year Estimates. Of the census block groups within Denton County, 
24.4 percent of the households identified as limited English speaking in 2016 compared to 12.9 

218

UPDATED



5 

percent of regional fare respondents in the survey. Table 4 displays this data, showing that 
regional fare pass users, on average, have a lower rate of limited English proficiency compared 
to the county average.  

Table 4. LEP Passenger Average Compared to County Average 

 
Denton 
County 

Regional Fare Pass User Average 12.9% 
Service Area Average 24.4% 

Difference -11.5% 
Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 
2016 5-Year Estimates and NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-
board survey. (N=31). 

A‐train	Fare	Free	Zones	–	Fare	Use	and	Demographics	

This section reviews DCTA’s proposed A-train fare changes compared to the 2014 ridership 
findings from NCTCOG. The data is compared according to DCTA’s disparate impact and 
disproportionate burden policies to determine if the proposed fare change may be defined as 
either such impact. Table 5 presents data showing the rate of local fare use on the A-train by 
people that identify as a minority and people with low-incomes. 

Table 5. Local Fare Usage by Minority and Low-Income Status 

  Minority Low-Income 
Fare # of Users Yes No No Response Yes* No No Response
Local 
A-train 

67 53.73% 46.27% 0.00% 56.72% 11.94% 31.34%

Source: NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-board survey. 
* DCTA defines low income as 80 percent of the national per capita income. TTI interprets “national per capita 
income” as the national median income. In 2014, according to the U.S. Census, the national median income was 
$53,657 - 80 percent of which is $42,925.60. The 2014 NCTCOG regional transit on-board survey income 
categories do not align with this definition exactly, therefore this data represents all respondents with incomes up to 
$49,999. 

Low‐Income	and	Minority	Populations	

The A-train service area is mostly in Denton County, with one stop in Dallas County4. In 2016, 
the service area population was 3,267,704. In Denton County, on average, 8.9 percent of the 
Denton County population identified as low-income and 20.5 percent identified as minority in 
2016. In the same year in Dallas County, low-income and minority populations represented 19.1 
and 28.4 percent, respectively, of the total population. Table 6 presents the percent of 
low-income and minority populations affected by the A-train fare free zones, compared to the 
service area average. Low-income and minority users that travel with local fares on the A-train 
make up a larger portion of DCTA’s ridership than the same group’s portion of DCTA’s service 
area population as a whole.  

                                                 
4 Trinity Mills Station is in Dallas County. 

219

UPDATED



6 

Table 6. DCTA Service Area Population Compared to A-train Local Fare Users 

 Denton County Dallas County 
 Low-Income Minority Low-Income Minority 

Local Fare Users 56.7% 53.7% 14.3% 37.1%
Service Area Average 8.9% 20.5% 19.9% 28.4%

Difference 47.80% 33.20% -5.7% 8.7%
Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and NCTCOG 2014 
regional transit on-board survey. 

Limited	English	Proficiency	Populations	

DCTA includes populations with limited English proficiency (LEP) in the transit agency’s equity 
analysis requirements so that staff is aware of the status of this population. This section compares 
the number of A-train riders that use local fares identified in the NCTCOG regional transit on-
board survey as having limited English (as in the above LEP analysis) and the number of LEP 
persons within the A-train catchment areas according to the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-
Year Estimates. 

Survey	Data	Analysis	

LEP information is not included in NCTCOG’s 2014 regional transit on-board survey, however, 
the survey includes a similar question deriving how well a passenger speaks English. Passengers 
could choose from “Very Well”, “Well”, “Less than Well”, or “Not at All”. TTI used answers 
where passengers indicated, “Less than Well” or “Not at All” and compared with LEP data from 
the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2012-2016 5-Year Estimates. Of the census block groups within 
Denton County, 24.4 percent of the households identified as limited English speaking in 2016 
compared to 9.1 percent of regional fare respondents in the survey. Table 7 displays this data, 
showing that regional fare pass users, on average, have a lower rate of limited English 
proficiency compared to the county average.  

Table 7. A-train LEP Passenger Average Compared to County Average 

 
Denton 
County 

A-train Local Fare User Average 9.1% 
Service Area Average 24.4% 

Difference -15.3% 

Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 
2016 5-Year Estimates and NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-
board survey. (N=11). 

220

UPDATED



7 

Census	Data	Analysis	

To learn more about the population within the A-train catchment areas5, TTI collected LEP data 
from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates for these areas. Of the census block 
groups within the A-train catchment areas in Denton County, 33.9 percent of the households 
identified as limited English speaking in 2016—9.5 percent more than the service area average. 
In the same year, in Dallas County (where Trinity Mills station is located), 40.1 percent of the 
households within the A-train catchment area identified as limited English speaking—0.7 percent 
less than the County average. Table 8 compares the limited English speaking populations within 
A-train catchment areas in Denton and Dallas County with the county average. 

Table 8. LEP Households in A-train Catchment Areas Compared to County Average 

 
Denton 
County 

Tarrant 
County 

Catchment Area Population 33.9% 40.1% 
Service Area Average 24.4% 40.8% 

Difference 9.5% -0.7% 
Source: TTI analysis of data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s ACS 2016 5-Year 
Estimates and NCTCOG 2014 regional transit on-board survey. 

Conclusion	

The following sections briefly outline the findings from the above analyses. For additional 
reference, Appendix C presents maps depicting the location, by census block groups, of low-
income, minority, and LEP populations as relevant to each fare change. 

Regional	Fare	Analysis	

The Title VI equity analysis findings for DCTA’s proposed 20 percent regional fare increase 
show that the change affects ridership with higher than average concentrations of low-income, 
minority, and LEP populations. Therefore, per DCTA’s Title VI policy, the fare change would 
have a disparate impact and disproportionate burden. To address these impacts DCTA will 
introduce a promotional fare reduction for local fare passes in August 2018 when the regional 
fare increase occurs. The fare reduction will range from 26 percent to 50 percent fare reductions 
across local fare pass options, depending on service, and is designed to result in total transit fares 
for regional service that are equal to or lower than current fares (the fares in place before the 
proposed increase is implemented) for the same service.  

A‐Train	Analysis	

According to the Title VI equity analysis findings for DCTA’s A-train fare free zones, the 
change will affect areas with higher than average concentrations of low-income, minority, and 
LEP populations. However, as the fare change is a reduction in overall fare from $3.00 to $0.00 

                                                 
5 DCTA defines catchment areas for the A‐train stations according to the American Public 
Transportation Association’s standard of one half mile. 

221

UPDATED



8 

this fare change presents an opportunity for these populations to experience enhanced access to 
DCTA’s A-train service and the regional connections it provides.  

  

222

UPDATED



9 

Appendix	A	–	DCTA’s	Disparate	Impact	and	Disproportionate	Burden	
Definitions		

Minority	Disparate	Impact	Policy	(Service	Equity	Analysis)	
 

When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to determine 
when a service or fare would have a disparate impact on minority populations: 
 
1. Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of minority passengers on an affected route 

is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership (within the approximate dataset’s margin of error) 
by transit classification (local, express, community circulators, campus routes, etc). 
 

2. Route Level Expansion of Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service area 
expansion is considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same route or other 
routes, and the route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves non-minority and/or non-
low-income geographic areas while the route(s) considered for reduction predominately serve minority 
and/or low-income geographic areas, then a disproportionate burden may be determined. 
 
A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of minority passengers on an affected 
route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s minority ridership percentage by 
transit classification and if the percentage of minority passengers on an affected route considered for 
service reduction is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership percentage by transit 
classification. 
 

3. Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is considered, a 
disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of minority passengers using the affected 
fare is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership percentage. 
 

4. The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population will be 
derived from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid regional on-board 
and destination survey; most recently completed customer surveys and demographic data by census 
tract. 

 

Low	Income	Disproportionate	Burden	Policy	(Service	Equity	Analysis)	
 

When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to determine 
when a service or fare change would have a disproportionate burden on low-income populations: 
 
1. Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected 

route is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership (within the approximate dataset’s margin 
of error) by transit classification (local, express, community circulators, campus routes, etc.). 
 

2. Route Level Expansion of Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service area 
expansion is considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same route or other 
routes, and the route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves non-minority and/or non-
low-income geographic areas while the route(s) considered for reduction predominately serve minority 
and/or low-income geographic areas, then a disproportionate burden may be determined. 
 

3. A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected 
route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage 
by transit classification and if the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected route considered 
for service reduction is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage by transit 
classification. 
 

223

UPDATED



10 

4. Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is considered, a 
disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of low-income passengers using the 
affected fare is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage. 
 

5. The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population will be 
derived from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid regional on-board 
and destination survey; most recently completed customer surveys and demographic data by census 
tract. 

 

 	

224

UPDATED



11 

Appendix	B	–	Fare	and	Service	Equity	Analysis	Process	

To conduct a Fare and Service Equity Analysis, DCTA uses the following process: 

1. As soon as any change in fare or service is proposed, DCTA staff describes in detail the 
proposed change. The detailed description included what routes, schedules, and service 
indicators (level and/or quality of service) would be affected. Additionally, staff describes 
the need or impetus for change. 

2. A determination is then made if the changes qualify as a major fare or service change under 
the Agency’s Major Fare and Service Change Policy. In the future, a record will be kept of 
both determinations. 

3. If the determination is yes, further analysis is required and public participation is 
warranted. 

4. A comparison is made to determine the difference between the existing service and 
proposed service for those impacted by the change. 

5. To analyze possible adverse effects, DCTA staff uses the following steps: 
a. Determine the affected area. 
b. Describe the demographic and ridership data and ridership data being used for the 

analysis and how they were collected. 
c. Describe how the data will be used to determine if the proposed change will have 

an adverse effect. 
d. Compare the location of the proposed change to the most recent demographic data 

on file. Is the affected area a minority, low-income, or LEP area according to the 
data? 

e. Compare the ridership population that will be affected by the change as compared 
to the general ridership population. Could there be a potential disparate impact or 
disproportionate burden? Explain. 

f. Analyze the data to describe the details and extent of the possible impacts. 
i. Create maps showing the affected areas and demographic data along with 

route information. 
ii. Create tables showing impacts of each type of change and the affected and 

overall ridership population. 
iii. Determine whether the proportion of minorities and/or low-income 

population that is affected is significant when compared to the general 
population set using thresholds designed in each policy. If not, finalize the 
analysis and provide to the Board. If so, steps need to be taken to describe 
these negative effects and to develop alternative options that mitigate, 
avoid, or minimize these effects. 

iv. Repeat the analysis for any alternative options. 
v. Present the finding to the Board of Directors for review and acceptance. 

6. The Public Participation Plan determines adequate comment period and appropriate 
communication and participation methods. 

7. All comments are recorded and presented to the Board of Directors as part of the decision 
making process. 

225

UPDATED



12 

Appendix	C	–	Demographic	Mapping	

Mapping demographic data allows transit planners to visualize the location of specific 
populations and how a given change in service may effect that population.  

This section presents the following maps: 

Figure 5. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – Service Area ________________ 13 
Figure 6. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – Service Area ___________________ 14 
Figure 7. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – Service Area _______________________ 15 
Figure 2. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones _______ 16 
Figure 3. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones __________ 17 
Figure 4. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones _____________ 18 

226

UPDATED



13 

Figure 2. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – Service Area 

227

UPDATED



14 

Figure 3. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – Service Area 

228

UPDATED



15 

Figure 4. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – Service Area 

229

UPDATED



16 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 5. DCTA Low-Income Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones 

230

UPDATED



17 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 6. DCTA Minority Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones 

231

UPDATED



18 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau ACS 2016 5-Year Estimates and TTI calculations 

Figure 7. DCTA LEP Population Concentrations – A-train Fare Free Zones 

232

UPDATED



233



 
DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO.  18-05 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ESTABLISHING THE AUTHORITY’S TRI-ANNUAL 
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOAL FOR FISCAL YEARS OCTOBER 1, 2018 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA) has adopted 
a policy that establishes rules and guidelines governing the procurement of goods and services from 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE’s) pursuant to the rules and guidelines in the Code of Federal 
Regulations (Title 49, Part 26) and Federal Transit Administration Circular 4716.1A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the key to the development of the DBE program is the establishment of a tri-annual DCTA 
program goal of DBE participation available from Federal Transit Administration assisted contract 
opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the DCTA finds that it is in the best interest of the DCTA to adopt 
a DBE goal for the fiscal years beginning October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2021.  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Board of Directors of the DCTA hereby adopts a DBE program goal of seven 
percent (7%) for fiscal year beginning October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2021.  
 
SECTION 2. The Board of Directors of the DCTA hereby finds and declares the recitals contained herein 
to be true and correct and approves and adopts the same herein as part of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 3. All provisions of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the DCTA, in conflict 
with the provisions of this Resolution be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other provisions 
not in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 4. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of this 
Resolution be adjudged or held to be void or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of said Resolution which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5. This Resolution shall become effective July 26, 2018. 
 

234



DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THE 26TH DAY OF JULY, 2018. 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
        
Charles Emery, Chairman  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Dianne Costa, Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  
Peter G. Smith, General Counsel  
 (PGS:7-12-18:TM 100970) 

235


	ADP9C42.tmp
	 Note A: Passenger Revenues – YTD favorable by $102k mainly due to lowering budgeted ridership during the Revised Budget process.  YTD FY18 rail ridership of 321k is 12% greater than revised budgeted ridership of 287k ($57k increased revenue).  YTD F...
	(A) Passenger revenues are linked with these ridership statistics.  Although Frisco & CCT service are contracted services, the passengers are responsible for a passenger fare as well.
	(B) These ridership numbers are shown for information purposes only and are not linked to passenger revenues.
	 Note B: Contract Service Revenue – YTD unfavorable by $1k.  YTD revenue hours for contract service are greater than the revised budgeted hours, resulting in a $127k increase in revenue.  YTD FY18 fuel usage for contract services of 105k gallons is 1...
	 Note C: Sales Tax Revenue – June sales tax revenue is not yet received and is accrued for the month based on budget. Sales tax generated in June will be received in August. The Sales Tax Report included in this agenda packet provides a more detailed...
	 Note D: Federal/State Grants - Capital – YTD unfavorable by ($1.9 million) due to delayed expenses and corresponding reimbursements for PTC, the Lewisville Hike & Bike Trail, and Brownfield work at the Rail O&M Facility.  These grants are paid on a ...
	 Note E: Federal/State Grants - Operating – YTD unfavorable by ($216k) mainly due to a delay in operating assistance grant funding, which will be available for draw down later this fiscal year.

	WS 1(a)i Monthly Financials - Jun 2018.pdf
	BS 6.18
	IS 6.18

	ADP4B67.tmp
	 Sales tax for sales generated at retail in the month of May and received in July was $2,375,417.
	 This represents an increase of 12.75% or $268,696 compared to budget for the month.
	 Member city collections for the month compared to prior year are as follows:
	o City of Lewisville up 8.77%
	o City of Denton up 7.59%
	o Highland Village up 5.59%

	WS 3(a) 07.16.18_JUL_Finance Committee Packet (Attachment A).pdf
	ADPC815.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	TODAY’S AGENDA
	FINAL ADJUSTMENTS
	CASH FLOW MODEL OVERVIEW 
	CASH FLOW MODEL HIGHLIGHTS
	REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	OPERATING BUDGET
	PROPOSED FY19 OPERATING �BASE-LINE ASSUMPTIONS
	PROPOSED FY19 OPERATING �EXPANDED LEVEL PROJECTS
	STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�G&A OPERATING EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�BUS OPERATIONS EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�RAIL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�NON-OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSE)
	CAPITAL
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �EXPANDED LEVEL PROJECTS
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	DISCUSSION/REVIEW PATH FORWARD
	DISCUSSION/REVIEW PATH FORWARD

	ADP64A4.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	TODAY’S AGENDA
	FINAL ADJUSTMENTS
	CASH FLOW MODEL OVERVIEW 
	CASH FLOW MODEL HIGHLIGHTS
	REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	PROPOSED FY19 REVENUES
	OPERATING BUDGET
	PROPOSED FY19 OPERATING �BASE-LINE ASSUMPTIONS
	PROPOSED FY19 OPERATING �EXPANDED LEVEL PROJECTS
	STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�G&A OPERATING EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�BUS OPERATIONS EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�RAIL OPERATIONS EXPENSES
	FY19 STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION�NON-OPERATING REVENUE / (EXPENSE)
	CAPITAL
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �EXPANDED LEVEL PROJECTS
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	PROPOSED FY19 CAPITAL �ROLL-OVER FROM FY18
	DISCUSSION/REVIEW PATH FORWARD
	DISCUSSION/REVIEW PATH FORWARD


	ADPD3FB.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	RAIL RIDERSHIP PROJECTIONS
	FARE PROMOTIONS: A-train Free Fare Zones
	FARE PROMOTIONS: University A-train Free Promo
	FARE PROMOTIONS: DCTA Local Fare Promotion
	Potential Service Changes, FY2019 ~
	Potential Service Changes – FY2019 ~
	Route 65 –Connects to Denton Airport Zone and Alliance Zones
	Technology
	ADDITIONAL DISCUSSION

	07.26.18_JULY_ Board Packet.pdf
	RM 3(a) Attachment 1_Public Engagement Wrap Up.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Engagement Overview
	Engagement Overview
	MEETING DETAILS
	Meeting Details
	Meeting Details
	Meeting Details
	SOCIAL MEDIA OUTREACH
	Facebook - Organic
	Twitter - Organic
	Facebook - Paid
	Facebook - Paid
	Twitter – Paid V1 
	Twitter – Paid V2 
	Social Media Comprehensive Results
	DIGITAL MARKETING OUTREACH
	Email Marketing Statistics
	Website Statistics
	MEDIA RELATIONS
	Media Relations
	Traditional Advertising
	Traditional Advertising
	OVERALL COMMUNITY OUTREACH STATISTICS
	Community Outreach
	Community Outreach - Email
	Partner Sharing
	BUDGET
	Budget
	OVERALL ENGAGEMENT STATISTICS
	Overall Engagement Statistics
	COMMENTS 
	Lewisville Comments
	Denton Comments
	Denton Comments
	Denton Comments
	Denton Comments
	Denton Comments
	Denton Comments
	Highland Village Comments
	Highland Village Comments
	Online Comments
	Online Comments
	Display Board Comments
	Display Board Comments
	Comment Takeaways

	RM 3(a) Attachment 2_April 2018 Public Meeting Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail
	Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail
	EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant
	EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant
	Job Access & Connectivity
	Corridors of Interest for Job Access and Connectivity
	Proposed Highland Village Service Changes
	HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Connect Shuttle
	HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Community On-Demand
	Proposed Lewisville Service Changes
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 25
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 26
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 27
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 28
	LEWISVILLE: Lakeview Zone
	Proposed Denton Service Changes
	DENTON CONNECT: Route 8
	DENTON: Enterprise Airport Zone
	Proposed UNT Service Changes
	Eagle Point (UNT Route)
	Proposed North Texas Xpress / Alliance Service Changes
	NORTH TEXAS XPRESS/ALLIANCE
	Alliance Link Shuttle
	2018 Fare Changes
	Proposed Regional Fare Increase
	Which is Most Important to You?
	Proposed Commuter Bus Service�Serving DCTA’s Hebron Station, �Southwestern Medical District and West End

	RM 3(a) Attachment 2_April 2018 Public Meeting Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Access Policies and Procedures Update
	Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail
	Eagle Point Section of the Hike and Bike Trail
	EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant
	EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant
	Job Access & Connectivity
	Corridors of Interest for Job Access and Connectivity
	Proposed Highland Village Service Changes
	HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Connect Shuttle
	HIGHLAND VILLAGE: Community On-Demand
	Proposed Lewisville Service Changes
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 25
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 26
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 27
	LEWISVILLE CONNECT: Route 28
	LEWISVILLE: Lakeview Zone
	Proposed Denton Service Changes
	DENTON CONNECT: Route 8
	DENTON: Enterprise Airport Zone
	Proposed UNT Service Changes
	Eagle Point (UNT Route)
	Proposed North Texas Xpress / Alliance Service Changes
	NORTH TEXAS XPRESS/ALLIANCE
	Alliance Link Shuttle
	2018 Fare Changes
	Proposed Regional Fare Increase
	Which is Most Important to You?
	Proposed Commuter Bus Service�Serving DCTA’s Hebron Station, �Southwestern Medical District and West End





